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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Aberdeen Boat Club Limited, will 
be held at 7:00pm on Wednesday, 25 November 2020 at the Clubhouse, 20 Shum Wan Road, 
Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

The following business will be conducted: 

1. To adopt the minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting held on 26 November 2019.

2. To receive the report of the Committee covering the activities of the Club for the year ended 30 
 June 2020. 

3. To adopt the accounts for the year ended 30 June 2020. 

4. To elect General Committee Members in accordance with Article 29(a).

5. To appoint the auditors for the ensuing year. 

6. Any Other Business, of which notice in writing has been given to the Honorary General 
 Secretary not less than seven days prior to the date of the meeting. 

BY ORDER OF THE GENERAL COMMITTEE

( Original Signed )

NICHOLAS BODNAR-HORVATH 
HONORARY GENERAL SECRETARY 
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COMMITTEE STRUCTURE 2019-2020

Sailing and Marine Committee Membership Committee
Graeme Brechin (Chairman)  Nicholas Bodnar-Horvath (Chairman)
Christopher Pooley Christopher Pooley 
Ian Skeggs Jon Zinke
John Berry John Berry
John Currie
Stephen Perret    
Andrew Blank (co-opted)  Staff Committee
Chris Tung (co-opted) Matthew Johnson (Chairman)
Michele Clark (co-opted) – Resigned  Christopher Pooley
 James Ross
 Nicholas Bodnar-Horvath 

House and Building Committee  Balloting Committee
Graham Price (Chairman) Nicholas Bodnar-Horvath (Chairman)
Christopher Pooley   Co-opted in rotation
Jon Zinke   
James Smith
Martin Ganz    
Sam Cheng 
Christopher Tung (co-opted)  

Development Committee 
Barry Hill (Chairman) 
Christopher Pooley  
Eric Tang
John Berry 
Matthew Johnson
Alan Child (co-opted) 
Paul Scroggie (co-opted)  
Sam Cheng (co-opted) 
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COMMODORE’S REPORT YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020
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By definition, the Commodore’s annual letter is an overview: in fact a double overview. Firstly of 
salient points during the June-June year; and secondly as a summary of the more detailed 
sub-Committee reports, which should be read for a fuller understanding of events which shaped the 
year----and its overall result. This particular year was characterised by two distinctly contrasting 
halves.

Last year’s Report was dominated by the impact of Typhoon Manghut and its aftermath following 
our submission of a major Insurance Claim and the consequent reconstruction of the Middle Island 
Clubhouse. So it’s only fitting, and pleasing, to be able to lead this year’s report by mentioning the 
good news of the Grand Re-opening in July, coupled with a Reciprocal Agreement with the VRC, 
bringing in new support to MI. 

To refer to the old saw mentioned last year, that ill wind did indeed blow the Club a lot of good. It 
was indeed superbly good news as the revived MI, with the appointment of a French Chef, and 
additional staff members serving a range of new dishes from the enhanced culinary facilities, 
enjoyed much support from members. The wood-fired pizza oven found particular favour amongst 
the young.

So a very good start, but as night follows day so came the striking contrast after CNY with the 
sudden onset of Covid 19 and its aftermath which dogged us for the rest of the year. In keeping with 
tradition the Club carried on and remained open throughout, albeit subject to varying, sometimes 
illogical or contradictory, regulatory restrictions. Frustrating for members of course but spare a 
thought for staff who smiled on diligently without complaint, notwithstanding the strain and 
constant operational changes. 

Fortunately for the Club’s overall health, sufficient numbers of members sought out and used their 
Club as a sanctuary, which meant results kept our ‘head above water’. Aided, it has to be said, by the 
Government’s Furlough payments, which in combination, stiffened the Committee’s resolve to 
avoid redundancies at all but unsustainable costs.  Which I am glad to say, has been the case.

That support by members was, paradoxically, helped by Covid which confined so many normal 
travellers to HK, with business trips and distant holidays cancelled. In those circumstances what, 
thought many members, could be better than a lazy or sporty afternoon based on the tropical island 
of Tong Po Chau? Come the false dawn of June things were beginning to look up. Bookings for 
children’s, youth and Adult Sailing Courses for the summer and autumn hit a record high. That was 
the state of play at the end of June …….then came another dip, followed by a more encouraging 
trend, but that’s for next year’s Report. 

Harking back to the previous year’s Report the forecast then was for submission of the 
EIA----critical to the MI Development ---by December 2019. Sadly that hope was dashed when the 
----required---- borehole surveys discovered the concentrated presence of Amphioxus, causing an 
effective 10 month delay. For the detail please refer to Barry Hill’s Devcom report. 
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Another eventful year, but the Club is still alive and well and enjoying a stream of new member 
applicants and increased participation in water sports activities by members and the local 
Community. That the Club has come through a time of such disruption to its core activities and 
remained afloat on even keel is in large measure thanks to the unrelenting efforts, goodwill and 
cheerful adaptability to changing circumstances of the GM, Management and staff members, both 
seen and unseen. Undaunted then, the Club can look forward to negotiating the Lease renewal in 
2021 from a solid base with a determination to build on past achievements.
        
That determination is fostered by my Flag Officer colleagues and the Chairmen of the 
Sub-Committees ----- Barry Hill, Nick Horvath, Graeme Brechin, Graham Price, and Treasurer 
Matthew Johnson ----- who, together with the General Committee members, collectively devote 
their time and efforts to the development and well-being of the Club.

I trust that members attending the AGM will join me in a Vote of Appreciation to Gencom members 
and ABC staff for their unflagging contributions throughout the year, a year which, despite the 
challenging conditions, ended with the Club in a sound and stable state, poised for better times 
ahead.

                                           
Chris Pooley
Commodore
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HONORARY TREASURER’S REPORT

Given the extraordinary circumstances of the twelve months covered by this Annual Report, the 
Club achieved satisfactory financial results to 30 June 2020. Overall revenue increasing 4% over the 
previous period reflecting the full opening of Middle Island in August 2019. However, the financial 
year ended with a small operating deficit due mostly to increased staffing levels for Middle Island, 
insurance costs and depreciation charges. The club has a target of achieving an operating break even 
position allowing new member Entrance Fees to cover ongoing major repairs and maintenance and 
fixed assets purchases. Membership levels remained consistent with prior years, with a small net 
addition and new member numbers covering departing members.

The total surplus for the twelve months was approximately HKD2,034,000. While this compares 
unfavourably to the prior year due to a one off gain on the write off of the Middle Island facility 
versus the insurance proceeds, this was also satisfactory. The insurance claim for the Typhoon 
Mankhut destroyed or damaged dinghy fleet is proving complicated and while we did expect it to be 
completed in this reporting period, we now expect it to be completed by the 31 December 2020.    

During the year the Club spent approximately HKD9,222,000 on fixed assets, the majority of the 
expenditure on competing the reinstatement work at Middle Island and replacing the dinghy fleet.  
Other capital expenditure was HKD1,2000,000 on furniture, kitchen and IT equipment and 
HKD989,000 on mooring and boat support related expenditure. For the reporting period, the 
General Committee reinstated the practice of allocating 70% of new member fees to the long term 
redevelopment of Middle Island and the responsible committee continues to implement its plan for 
government approval for this project. 

Looking at finances after 30 June 2020 the club has weathered the Covid 19 imposed restrictions on 
leisure activities well. With almost all revenue generating activities curtailed or cancelled for a 
significant period since 30 June 2020, including the popular summer holiday dinghy and water 
sports activities, management’s prudent approach to cost control contributed considerably to 
maintaining the Club’s finances during the Covid 19 lock down in its various forms. The Club did, 
and has, joined the governments Employment Support Scheme and this has considerably aided the 
Club’s ability to maintain our full staff levels.   

Matthew Johnson 
Honorary Treasurer 
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SAILING AND MARINE COMMITTEE REPORT

Another super year for Sailing and Marine where never a dull moment. What really helps more than 
anything is a full, strong Sailing Committee of fine, competent, keen people all backed up by our 
professional Marine Service staff, headed by Alex Johnston, that really know their business. We 
have gone from strength to strength in the past year from the youngest kids on our sailing 
programmes to full ARA internationals to a large healthy sailing and boating community.

The Dinghy’s have had a great year with Richard Knight at the helm. His Programs to suit all have 
ended the year with a full house in nearly all categories. What does he want for Christmas? More 
hardstanding! The only blot on the landscape being this terrible Covid nonsense that has now twice 
closed down our sailing programmes, during the busiest periods, for weeks on end resulting in us 
having to return large amounts of fees. Something I still have recurring nightmares over.

Our elite Racing Academy have just had arguably their best year ever certainly financially but on the 
water too. Six of our sailors took part in the 29er World and European Championships and youth 
Worlds in Poland and Italy. All did extremely well and I would encourage you to dig out their results 
from our Website. As a consequence two of our sailors, Casey Law and Augustin Clot were picked 
for the HKSF and Institute sailing Programme. A great honour.

In the big boats the Summer Series as ever a success with eighteen to twenty boats regularly turning 
up both IRC and HKPN. Seven races over the, as ever, summer light conditions so the lighter boats 
do well and the heaver suffer. But the great equaliser being the wonderful lunch destinations of Po 
Toi, Lamma, Cheng Chau and the Clear Water Bay to mention a few.

The more serious Winter Waglan Series with, at times, conditions not for the faint hearted was again 
attracting a big serious fleet. Now splitting into two IRC and two HKPN Divisions due to the 
numbers. This split into two mini-series of six races each, with four round the cans and the 
remainder around the Islands. A solid year with the guest celebratory appearance of the experienced 
Barry Truhol as Race Officer for Races eight and nine and Race eleven formed part of the IRC 
National Championships. Both of which being another seriously large feather in ABC’s cap. One 
thing that was noticed this year was the larger IRC boats now entering. They are so quick in some 
cases that for the first time in many years we have added a few longer race courses to our list. These 
we are looking forward to trying out this year.

Our annual Four Peaks Race attracted seventeen boats and this gruelling twenty four hour race was 
as ever a huge success. The tracking systems on all the boats really making it quite a spectator sport. 
This had a lot to do with Jennifer Li and all her hard work with the PR and Social media for all of 
the clubs sailing. It has made a big impact this year. 

In summary, another strong year. Arguably one of our best as we endeavour to follow the latest 
trends and expectations within our ever changing world.      

Graeme Brechin 
Rear Commodore 
Chairman – Sailing & Marine Committee 
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HOUSE AND BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT

The House and Building Committee (HouseCom)  is responsible for almost everything at the club 
that is not Sailing and Marine! 

We have an aging Clubhouse which requires considerable maintenance and upgrading.
Housecom is therefore the lead on maintaining the buildings (Main Clubhouse and Middle Island)  
and fabric of The Club, the food and beverage, recreational facilities and sponsoring the major 
functions of the year, Halloween and New Year’s Eve.  

During the period  from July 2019 to June 2020 we have overseen the following upgrades and 
repairs:

The Swimming Pool was completely refurbished with new tiling and Astroturf

The IT security system has been upgraded for $90K 
Reinstatement work and improvements to kitchen and outdoor BBQs at Middle Island
All our detergents are now fully bio-degradable
Typhoon flood prevention measures installed in the car park & MI 
The POS system was upgraded on MI 
New chiller heat exchanger installed
Coffee shop kitchen fresh air fan and ducting refurbished 
The bridge ceiling has been renovated 
Entrance door replacement at the main club
New car park labels have been issued 
Rooftop waterproofing renovation
Playground slide panels replacements
New furniture  purchased for the sun deck 
Pipe replacement in the car park 

Licensing and statutory tasks:

Fire pipes and sprinkler system survey  and Annual fire Inspection
Additional fire equipment in Harbour Room 
Relicensing of the Playroom and Accounts Office 
Middle Island Kitchen Licensing 
Middle Island licensing of ventilation 
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HOUSE AND BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT

Staff

Staffing remains an important issue for the House Committee. It is critical that we employ the best 
quality staff we can. In seeking to bring maintain and improve the quality of our staff we see changes 
each year. This year, we have seen further comings and goings with twelve staff leaving and nine 
staff arriving. 

This year we said goodbye to :
Ng Kwok Wai, Ko Wai Ming, Anita Rai, Prashant Gurung, Sipra Sherchan, 
Lee David H, Ng Chi Keung, Kwok Ka Kit, Chan Kam Tat, Lau Kam Sau, Wang Xiaohong

We welcomed these new staff members :
Aurelien Lagrange, Sandipa Gurung, Yeung Pui Wa, Sherlom Ng, Shamine Gauchan, 
Gaurav Limbu, Tam Wai Hang, Ng Chi Wa, Chan Sin Chui

Recognition

The Food and Beverage and House Departments play a critical role in facilitating ongoing service 
and making improvements at the club.  We should all express our grateful thanks to the dedicated 
ABC staff who  work so hard to keep the Club operating ( many of them behind the scenes)  to 
satisfy our diverse membership, always with a cheery smile.

As a new Chairman I would like to  thank my predecessor Richard Walker for his valuable 
leadership. I also thank the committee for their ideas, time, efforts and contributions over the last 
year. Committee members are: Graham Price myself, Christopher Pooley, Christopher Tung, James 
Smith, Jon Zinke, Martin Ganz and Sam Cheng. 

Please contact me or the General Manager if you have ideas for improvements at the Club. 
Alternatively, if you would like to take up a more formal role at the Club please consider joining our 
Committee.

Graham Price 
Rear Commodore 
Chairman – House and Building Committee 
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DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Development Committee is responsible for managing the development of the Club’s facilities 
at Middle Island.  During the last twelve months the committee have continued to progress the 
statutory approval process that is mandatory for all major works at our Middle Island facility.  

The main focus during this period has been the preparation of an Environmental Impact Assessment 
Report (EIA).  This is a very significant piece of work which addresses all of the technical 
implications of the proposed development with respect to many environmental considerations as 
specified by the Government.  We have engaged three specialist consultants to assist with the 
assessment of the criteria and produce the documentation. This has included conducting sea bed 
surveys, regular liaison with Government Departments and arranging public consultations with 
various local interest groups.

In late 2019 the programme for submission of the report in December 2019 was abruptly halted 
when the results of the ecological survey of the seabed in November 2019 found the presence of 
amphioxus. Amphioxus is a small lancelet type fish up to 5 cm in length which lives in shallow sand 
habitats and is a protected species in Hong Kong, China and Japan.  Because it is present in the work 
site it requires mitigation measures to be presented to Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation 
Department (AFCD). An alternative piled deck design had to be prepared and  was submitted to 
AFCD in February 2020 to establish if this alternative provided acceptable mitigation measures for 
protection of the amphioxus. Following further meetings, AFCD provided a positive response for 
the new design to be included in the EIA which then allowed the major rework of the supporting 
documents to proceed.

Development Committee is now working closely with our consultants to finalise the extensive 
documentation which is required for the EIA and achieving a submission date by November 2020. 
The presence of amphioxus within the work site has been an unexpected problem which had to be 
resolved to allow the statutory process to proceed and has unfortunately further delayed the process 
by 10 months.

I would like to thank the following members of the Development Committee who have all made  
contributions to our work throughout the period: Chris Pooley, Matthew Johnson, John Berry, Paul 
Scroggie, Eric Tang, Alan Child and Sam Cheng.  In particular, I would recognize the efforts of 
former Commodore John Berry, who has made a significant contribution to the design work 
required to progress the difficult issues which have arisen. 

Barry Hill
Vice Commodore
Chairman - Development Committee
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K@"$^b:0)&$@*6$366<";$*$-"G$^bc!?U$^bc!?$8C$RP"*6"6SU$*-;$*$-<2L".$1#$*2"-;2"-46$41$
^bc!?6$ 4@*4$ *."$ #3.64$ "##"A43B"$ #1.$ 4@"$ A<.."-4$ *AA1<-43-+$ 7".31;$ 1#$ 4@"$ 0/<LN$ $ [ZA"74$ #1.$
^bc!?$ 8CU$ -1-"$ 1#$ 4@"$ ;"B"/172"-46$ @*6$ @*;$ *$ 2*4".3*/$ 327*A4$ 1-$ 4@"$ 0/<L56$ #3-*-A3*/$
64*4"2"-46$#1.$4@"$F"*.6$7."6"-4";N$ $ $
$
^bc!?$8C$."7/*A"6$^b&?$8D$RP"*6"6S$*-;$4@"$."/*4";$3-4".7."4*431-6N$ $ :4$3-4.1;<A"6$*$63-+/"$
*AA1<-43-+$21;"/$ #1.$ /"66""6U$G@3A@$ ."E<3."6$ *$ /"66""$ 41$ ."A1+-36"$ *$ .3+@491#9<6"$ *66"4$ *-;$ *$
/"*6"$/3*L3/34F$#1.$*//$/"*6"6U$"ZA"74$#1.$/"*6"6$4@*4$@*B"$*$/"*6"$4".2$1#$8'$21-4@6$1.$/"66$QR6@1.49
4".2$/"*6"6ST$*-;$/"*6"6$1#$/1G9B*/<"$*66"46N$ $ K@"$/"661.$*AA1<-43-+$."E<3."2"-46$*."$L.1<+@4$
#1.G*.;$ #.12$ ^b&?$ 8D$ *-;$ ."2*3-$ 6<L64*-43*//F$ <-A@*-+";N$ $ ^bc!?$ 8C$ */61$ 3-4.1;<A"6$
*;;3431-*/$E<*/34*43B"$*-;$E<*-434*43B"$;36A/16<."$."E<3."2"-46$G@3A@$*32$41$"-*L/"$<6".6$1#$4@"$
#3-*-A3*/$ 64*4"2"-46$ 41$ *66"66$ 4@"$ "##"A4$ 4@*4$ /"*6"6$ @*B"$ 1-$ 4@"$ #3-*-A3*/$ 7163431-U$ #3-*-A3*/$
7".#1.2*-A"$*-;$A*6@$#/1G6$1#$*-$"-434FN$
$
K@"$0/<L$@*6$3-343*//F$*77/3";$^bc!?$8C$*6$#.12$8$M</F$'J8HN$ $ K@"$0/<L$@*6$"/"A4";$41$<6"$
4@"$ 21;3#3";$ ."4.167"A43B"$ *77.1*A@$ *-;$ @*6$ 4@"."#1."$ ."A1+-36";$ 4@"$ A<2</*43B"$ "##"A4$ 1#$
3-343*/$ *77/3A*431-$ *6$ *-$ *;X<642"-4$ 41$ 4@"$ 17"-3-+$ L*/*-A"$ 1#$ "E<34F$ *4$ 8$ M</F$ 'J8HN$ $
0127*.*43B"$3-#1.2*431-$@*6$-14$L""-$."64*4";$*-;$A1-43-<"6$41$L"$."71.4";$<-;".$^b&?$8DN$
$
c<.4@".$;"4*3/6$1#$4@"$-*4<."$*-;$"##"A4$1#$4@"$A@*-+"6$41$7."B31<6$*AA1<-43-+$71/3A3"6$*-;$4@"$
4.*-63431-$17431-6$*77/3";$*."$6"4$1<4$L"/1G%$
$
Q3T$ I"G$;"#3-3431-$1#$*$/"*6"$
$

K@"$A@*-+"$3-$4@"$;"#3-3431-$1#$*$/"*6"$2*3-/F$."/*4"6$41$4@"$A1-A"74$1#$A1-4.1/N$^bc!?$
8C$;"#3-"6$ *$ /"*6"$1-$ 4@"$L*636$1#$G@"4@".$ *$ A<6412".$A1-4.1/6$ 4@"$<6"$1#$ *-$ 3;"-43#3";$
*66"4$ #1.$ *$ 7".31;$ 1#$ 432"U$ G@3A@$ 2*F$ L"$ ;"4".23-";$ LF$ *$ ;"#3-";$ *21<-4$ 1#$ <6"N$ $
01-4.1/$ 36$ A1-B"F";$ G@"."$ 4@"$ A<6412".$ @*6$ L14@$ 4@"$ .3+@4$ 41$ ;3."A4$ 4@"$ <6"$ 1#$ 4@"$
3;"-43#3";$*66"4$*-;$41$1L4*3-$6<L64*-43*//F$*//$1#$4@"$"A1-123A$L"-"#346$#.12$4@*4$<6"N$

$
K@"$0/<L$*77/3"6$4@"$-"G$;"#3-3431-$1#$*$/"*6"$3-$^bc!?$8C$1-/F$41$A1-4.*A46$4@*4$G"."$
"-4".";$3-41$1.$A@*-+";$1-$1.$*#4".$8$M</F$'J8HN$ $ c1.$A1-4.*A46$"-4".";$3-41$L"#1."$8$M</F$
'J8HU$ 4@"$0/<L$@*6$<6";$ 4@"$ 4.*-63431-*/$7.*A43A*/$"Z7";3"-4$ 41$+.*-;#*4@".$ 4@"$7."B31<6$
*66"662"-4$ 1#$ G@3A@$ "Z3643-+$ *..*-+"2"-46$ *."$ 1.$ A1-4*3-$ /"*6"6N$ $ &AA1.;3-+/FU$
A1-4.*A46$ 4@*4$ G"."$ 7."B31<6/F$ *66"66";$ *6$ /"*6"6$ <-;".$ ^b&?$ 8D$ A1-43-<"$ 41$ L"$
*AA1<-4";$#1.$*6$/"*6"6$<-;".$^bc!?$8C$*-;$A1-4.*A46$7."B31<6/F$*66"66";$*6$-1-9/"*6"$
6".B3A"$*..*-+"2"-46$A1-43-<"$41$L"$*AA1<-4";$#1.$*6$"Z"A<41.F$A1-4.*A46N$

$
$
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED (CONTINUED)
香港仔遊艇會有限公司
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

$

! ! %"

9&%#5#&%#&+'*.%0+)$34'$#5)$+'+)'+:#'1#1"#$4');'
!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'67)&+0&.#%8'
!"#$%&'()*'
Q:-A1.71.*4";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$G34@$/3*L3/34F$/3234";$LF$+<*.*-4""T$
!
!
B,-'3%-$5$)$*$,-! 3A! 1,%,#()! 2344$**,,! 4,45,#-! (%7! *;3-,! &;(#:,7! 0$*;! :3+,#%(%&,! A3#! *;,!
A$%(%&$()!-*(*,4,%*-!
$
K@"$,"-".*/$0122344""$2"2L".6$*."$."671-63L/"$#1.$4@"$7."7*.*431-$1#$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46$4@*4$+3B"$
*$ 4.<"$ *-;$ #*3.$ B3"G$ 3-$ *AA1.;*-A"$ G34@$ ^bc!?6$ 366<";$ LF$ 4@"$ ^b:0)&$ *-;$ 4@"$ ^1-+$ b1-+$
0127*-3"6$\.;3-*-A"U$*-;$#1.$6<A@$3-4".-*/$A1-4.1/$*6$4@"$,"-".*/$0122344""$2"2L".6$;"4".23-"$36$
-"A"66*.F$41$"-*L/"$4@"$7."7*.*431-$1#$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46$4@*4$*."$#.""$#.12$2*4".3*/$23664*4"2"-4U$
G@"4@".$;<"$41$#.*<;$1.$"..1.N$
$
:-$7."7*.3-+$4@"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46U$4@"$,"-".*/$0122344""$2"2L".6$*."$."671-63L/"$#1.$*66"663-+$
4@"$0/<L56$*L3/34F$41$A1-43-<"$*6$*$+13-+$A1-A".-U$;36A/163-+U$*6$*77/3A*L/"U$2*44".6$."/*4";$41$+13-+$
A1-A".-$ *-;$ <63-+$ 4@"$ +13-+$ A1-A".-$ L*636$ 1#$ *AA1<-43-+$ <-/"66$ 4@"$ ,"-".*/$ 0122344""$2"2L".6$
"34@".$3-4"-;$41$/3E<3;*4"$4@"$0/<L$1.$41$A"*6"$17".*431-6U$1.$@*B"$-1$."*/3643A$*/4".-*43B"$L<4$41$;1$61N$
$
K@16"$A@*.+";$G34@$+1B".-*-A"$*."$."671-63L/"$#1.$1B".6""3-+$4@"$0/<L56$#3-*-A3*/$."71.43-+$7.1A"66N$
!
?/7$*3#9-!#,-'3%-$5$)$*$,-!A3#!*;,!(/7$*!3A!*;,!A$%(%&$()!-*(*,4,%*-!
!
\<.$1LX"A43B"6$*."$41$1L4*3-$."*61-*L/"$*66<.*-A"$*L1<4$G@"4@".$4@"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46$*6$*$G@1/"$
*."$ #.""$ #.12$2*4".3*/$23664*4"2"-4U$G@"4@".$;<"$ 41$ #.*<;$1.$"..1.U$*-;$ 41$ 366<"$*-$*<;341.56$ ."71.4$
4@*4$3-A/<;"6$1<.$173-31-N$ $ K@36$."71.4$36$2*;"$61/"/F$41$F1<U$*6$*$L1;FU$3-$*AA1.;*-A"$G34@$6"A431-$
dJ>$ 1#$ 4@"$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ 0127*-3"6$ \.;3-*-A"U$ *-;$ #1.$ -1$ 14@".$ 7<.716"N$ $ a"$ ;1$ -14$ *66<2"$
."671-63L3/34F$41G*.;6$1.$*AA"74$/3*L3/34F$41$*-F$14@".$7".61-$#1.$4@"$A1-4"-46$1#$4@36$."71.4N$ $
$
!"*61-*L/"$*66<.*-A"$36$*$@3+@$/"B"/$1#$*66<.*-A"U$L<4$36$-14$*$+<*.*-4""$4@*4$*-$*<;34$A1-;<A4";$3-$
*AA1.;*-A"$G34@$^b?&6$G3//$*/G*F6$;"4"A4$*$2*4".3*/$23664*4"2"-4$G@"-$34$"Z3646N$ $ V3664*4"2"-46$
A*-$ *.36"$ #.12$ #.*<;$ 1.$ "..1.$ *-;$ *."$ A1-63;".";$2*4".3*/$ 3#U$ 3-;3B3;<*//F$ 1.$ 3-$ 4@"$ *++."+*4"U$ 4@"F$
A1</;$."*61-*L/F$L"$"Z7"A4";$41$3-#/<"-A"$4@"$"A1-123A$;"A3631-6$1#$<6".6$4*Y"-$1-$4@"$L*636$1#$4@"6"$
#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46N$
$
&6$ 7*.4$ 1#$ *-$ *<;34$ 3-$ *AA1.;*-A"$G34@$^b?&6U$G"$ "Z".A36"$ 7.1#"6631-*/$ X<;+"2"-4$ *-;$2*3-4*3-$
7.1#"6631-*/$6Y"743A362$4@.1<+@1<4$4@"$*<;34N$ $ a"$*/61%$
$
&! :;"-43#F$*-;$*66"66$4@"$.36Y6$1#$2*4".3*/$23664*4"2"-4$1#$4@"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46U$G@"4@".$;<"$41$
#.*<;$ 1.$ "..1.U$ ;"63+-$ *-;$ 7".#1.2$ *<;34$ 7.1A";<."6$ ."671-63B"$ 41$ 4@16"$ .36Y6U$ *-;$ 1L4*3-$ *<;34$
"B3;"-A"$ 4@*4$ 36$ 6<##3A3"-4$ *-;$ *77.17.3*4"$ 41$ 7.1B3;"$ *$ L*636$ #1.$ 1<.$ 173-31-N$ $ K@"$ .36Y$ 1#$ -14$
;"4"A43-+$*$2*4".3*/$23664*4"2"-4$."6</43-+$#.12$#.*<;$36$@3+@".$4@*-$#1.$1-"$."6</43-+$#.12$"..1.U$
*6$#.*<;$2*F$3-B1/B"$A1//<631-U$#1.+".FU$3-4"-431-*/$1236631-6U$236."7."6"-4*431-6U$1.$4@"$1B"..3;"$
1#$3-4".-*/$A1-4.1/N$

$
&! \L4*3-$*-$<-;".64*-;3-+$1#$3-4".-*/$A1-4.1/$."/"B*-4$41$4@"$*<;34$3-$1.;".$41$;"63+-$*<;34$7.1A";<."6$
4@*4$*."$*77.17.3*4"$3-$4@"$A3.A<264*-A"6U$L<4$-14$#1.$4@"$7<.716"$1#$"Z7."663-+$*-$173-31-$1-$4@"$
"##"A43B"-"66$1#$4@"$0/<L56$3-4".-*/$A1-4.1/N$ $
$

$

! ! '"

9&%#5#&%#&+'*.%0+)$34'$#5)$+'+)'+:#'1#1"#$4');'
!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'67)&+0&.#%8'
!"#$%&'()*'
Q:-A1.71.*4";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$G34@$/3*L3/34F$/3234";$LF$+<*.*-4""T$
!
$
?/7$*3#9-!#,-'3%-$5$)$*$,-!A3#!*;,!(/7$*!3A!*;,!A$%(%&$()!-*(*,4,%*-!6&3%*$%/,78!

$
&! [B*/<*4"$ 4@"$ *77.17.3*4"-"66$ 1#$ *AA1<-43-+$ 71/3A3"6$ <6";$ *-;$ 4@"$ ."*61-*L/"-"66$ 1#$ *AA1<-43-+$
"6432*4"6$*-;$."/*4";$;36A/16<."6$2*;"$LF$4@"$,"-".*/$0122344""$2"2L".6N$
$

&! 01-A/<;"$1-$ 4@"$ *77.17.3*4"-"66$ 1#$ 4@"$,"-".*/$0122344""$2"2L".65$ <6"$ 1#$ 4@"$ +13-+$ A1-A".-$
L*636$ 1#$ *AA1<-43-+$ *-;U$ L*6";$ 1-$ 4@"$ *<;34$ "B3;"-A"$ 1L4*3-";U$ G@"4@".$ *$ 2*4".3*/$ <-A".4*3-4F$
"Z3646$ ."/*4";$ 41$ "B"-46$ 1.$ A1-;3431-6$ 4@*4$ 2*F$ A*64$ 63+-3#3A*-4$ ;1<L4$ 1-$ 4@"$ 0/<L56$ *L3/34F$ 41$
A1-43-<"$*6$*$+13-+$A1-A".-N$ $ :#$G"$A1-A/<;"$4@*4$*$2*4".3*/$<-A".4*3-4F$"Z3646U$G"$*."$."E<3.";$41$
;.*G$*44"-431-$ 3-$1<.$ *<;341.56$ ."71.4$ 41$ 4@"$ ."/*4";$;36A/16<."6$ 3-$ 4@"$ #3-*-A3*/$ 64*4"2"-46$1.U$ 3#$
6<A@$;36A/16<."6$*."$3-*;"E<*4"U$41$21;3#F$1<.$173-31-N$ $ \<.$A1-A/<631-6$*."$L*6";$1-$4@"$*<;34$
"B3;"-A"$1L4*3-";$<7$ 41$ 4@"$;*4"$1#$ 1<.$ *<;341.56$ ."71.4N$ $ ^1G"B".U$ #<4<."$ "B"-46$1.$ A1-;3431-6$
2*F$A*<6"$4@"$0/<L$41$A"*6"$41$A1-43-<"$*6$*$+13-+$A1-A".-N$
$

&! [B*/<*4"$ 4@"$1B".*//$7."6"-4*431-U$64.<A4<."$*-;$A1-4"-4$1#$ 4@"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46U$ 3-A/<;3-+$ 4@"$
;36A/16<."6U$*-;$G@"4@".$4@"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46$."7."6"-4$4@"$<-;"./F3-+$4.*-6*A431-6$*-;$"B"-46$
3-$*$2*--".$4@*4$*A@3"B"6$#*3.$7."6"-4*431-N$

$
a"$A122<-3A*4"$G34@$ 4@16"$A@*.+";$G34@$+1B".-*-A"$ ."+*.;3-+U$*21-+$14@".$2*44".6U$ 4@"$7/*--";$
6A17"$*-;$4323-+$1#$4@"$*<;34$*-;$63+-3#3A*-4$*<;34$#3-;3-+6U$3-A/<;3-+$*-F$63+-3#3A*-4$;"#3A3"-A3"6$3-$
3-4".-*/$A1-4.1/$4@*4$G"$3;"-43#F$;<.3-+$1<.$*<;34N$
$
$
$
$
$
$

O*Y".$K3//F$^1-+$b1-+$P3234";$

0".43#3";$)<L/3A$&AA1<-4*-46$

^1-+$b1-+U$ $

!F*-$M*2"6$?G*--$

).*A4363-+$A".43#3A*4"$-<2L".$)JD88H$

$

! !!#"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
F)+#4'+)'+:#';0&*&70*-'4+*+#1#&+4'67)&+0&.#%8'

! Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
!
U! C$:%$A$&(%*!(&&3/%*$%:!'3)$&$,-!6&3%*$%/,78!
!
6&8! 2;(%:,-!$%!(&&3/%*$%:!'3)$&$,-!6&3%*$%/,78!

$
Q33T$ P"66""$*AA1<-43-+$*-;$4.*-63431-*/$327*A4$

$
^bc!?$8C$"/323-*4"6$ 4@"$."E<3."2"-4$#1.$*$ /"66""$ 41$A/*663#F$ /"*6"6$*6$"34@".$17".*43-+$
/"*6"6$1.$#3-*-A"$/"*6"6U$*6$G*6$7."B31<6/F$."E<3.";$LF$^b&?$8DN$ $ :-64"*;U$4@"$0/<L$36$
."E<3.";$41$A*734*/36"$*//$/"*6"6$G@"-$34$36$4@"$/"66""U$3-A/<;3-+$/"*6"6$7."B31<6/F$A/*663#3";$
*6$17".*43-+$/"*6"6$<-;".$^b&?$8DU$14@".$4@*-$4@16"$6@1.494".2$/"*6"6$*-;$/"*6"6$1#$/1G9
B*/<"$*66"46$G@3A@$*."$"Z"274N$ $ &6$#*.$*6$ 4@"$0/<L$36$A1-A".-";U$ 4@"$-"G/F$A*734*/36";$
/"*6"$36$3-$."/*431-$41$*$/*-;$/14$#1.$4@"$17".*431-$1#$*$A/<L@1<6"$*6$;36A/16";$3-$-14"$8JN$ $
c1.$*-$"Z7/*-*431-$1#$@1G$4@"$0/<L$*77/3"6$/"66""$*AA1<-43-+U$6""$-14"$'Q"TN$
$
&4$4@"$;*4"$1#$4.*-63431-$41$^bc!?$8C$Q3N"N$8$M</F$'J8HTU$4@"$0/<L$;"4".23-";$4@"$/"-+4@$
1#$ 4@"$."2*3-3-+$/"*6"$4".26$*-;$2"*6<.";$4@"$/"*6"$/3*L3/343"6$#1.$ 4@"$/"*6"6$7."B31<6/F$
A/*663#3";$ *6$ 17".*43-+$ /"*6"6$ *4$ 4@"$ 7."6"-4$ B*/<"$ 1#$ 4@"$ ."2*3-3-+$ /"*6"$ 7*F2"-46U$
;36A1<-4";$ <63-+$ 4@"$ ."/"B*-4$ 3-A."2"-4*/$ L1..1G3-+$ .*4"$ *4$ 8$ M</F$ 'J8HN$ $ K@"$
3-A."2"-4*/$L1..1G3-+$.*4"$<6";$#1.$;"4".23-*431-$1#$4@"$7."6"-4$B*/<"$1#$4@"$."2*3-3-+$
/"*6"$7*F2"-46$G*6$>gN$ $ $ $
$
K1$ "*6"$ 4@"$ 4.*-63431-$ 41$ ^bc!?$ 8CU$ 4@"$ 0/<L$ *77/3";$ 4@"$ ."A1+-3431-$ "Z"27431-$ *-;$
"/"A4";$-14$41$*77/F$4@"$."E<3."2"-46$1#$^bc!?$8C$3-$."67"A4$1#$4@"$."A1+-3431-$1#$/"*6"$
/3*L3/343"6$*-;$.3+@491#9<6"$*66"4$41$*$/"*6"$#1.$G@3A@$4@"$."2*3-3-+$/"*6"$4".2$"-;6$L"#1."$
=J$M<-"$'J'JN$ $ $
$
K@"$ #1//1G3-+$ 4*L/"$ ."A1-A3/"6$ 4@"$17".*43-+$ /"*6"$ A122342"-46$ *6$ *4$=J$ M<-"$'J8H$ *6$
;36A/16";$3-$-14"$8HQLT$41$4@"$17"-3-+$L*/*-A"$#1.$/"*6"$/3*L3/343"6$."A1+-36";$*6$*4$8$M</F$
'J8H%$ $
$ $ ^bW$
$ $ $
\7".*43-+$/"*6"$A122342"-46$*4$=J$M<-"$'J8H$ $ d8DUC=J$
P"66%$0122342"-46$."/*43-+$41$*$/"*6"$"Z"274$#.12$A*734*/36*431-$ $
$ $ $ $ $ $ h$/"*6"$G34@$."2*3-3-+$/"*6"$4".2$"-;3-+$1-$1.$L"#1."$=J$M<-"$'J'J$

$
Q$ $ (U8=JT$

P"66%$K14*/$#<4<."$3-4"."64$"Z7"-6"6$ $ $ Q$ !'8U''DT$
P"66%$\4@".$*;X<642"-4$ $ $ Q$ $ dU(JJT$
$ $ $
K14*/$/"*6"$/3*L3/343"6$."A1+-36";$*4$8$M</F$'J8H$ $ =(=UdD=$
$ $ $

Q333T$ P"661.$*AA1<-43-+$ $
$
K@"$ 0/<L$ /"*6"6$ 1<4$ A*.7*.Y$ 67*A"6U$ 211.3-+$ <-346$ *-;$ A/<L$ L1*46$ 41$ *$ -<2L".$ 1#$
2"2L".6N$ $ K@"$*AA1<-43-+$71/3A3"6$*77/3A*L/"$41$4@"$0/<L$*6$*$/"661.$<-;".$^bc!?$8C$
."2*3-$6<L64*-43*//F$<-A@*-+";$#.12$4@16"$<-;".$^b&?$8DN$

!
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED (CONTINUED)
香港仔遊艇會有限公司
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

$

! ! '"

9&%#5#&%#&+'*.%0+)$34'$#5)$+'+)'+:#'1#1"#$4');'
!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'67)&+0&.#%8'
!"#$%&'()*'
Q:-A1.71.*4";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$G34@$/3*L3/34F$/3234";$LF$+<*.*-4""T$
!
$
?/7$*3#9-!#,-'3%-$5$)$*$,-!A3#!*;,!(/7$*!3A!*;,!A$%(%&$()!-*(*,4,%*-!6&3%*$%/,78!

$
&! [B*/<*4"$ 4@"$ *77.17.3*4"-"66$ 1#$ *AA1<-43-+$ 71/3A3"6$ <6";$ *-;$ 4@"$ ."*61-*L/"-"66$ 1#$ *AA1<-43-+$
"6432*4"6$*-;$."/*4";$;36A/16<."6$2*;"$LF$4@"$,"-".*/$0122344""$2"2L".6N$
$

&! 01-A/<;"$1-$ 4@"$ *77.17.3*4"-"66$ 1#$ 4@"$,"-".*/$0122344""$2"2L".65$ <6"$ 1#$ 4@"$ +13-+$ A1-A".-$
L*636$ 1#$ *AA1<-43-+$ *-;U$ L*6";$ 1-$ 4@"$ *<;34$ "B3;"-A"$ 1L4*3-";U$ G@"4@".$ *$ 2*4".3*/$ <-A".4*3-4F$
"Z3646$ ."/*4";$ 41$ "B"-46$ 1.$ A1-;3431-6$ 4@*4$ 2*F$ A*64$ 63+-3#3A*-4$ ;1<L4$ 1-$ 4@"$ 0/<L56$ *L3/34F$ 41$
A1-43-<"$*6$*$+13-+$A1-A".-N$ $ :#$G"$A1-A/<;"$4@*4$*$2*4".3*/$<-A".4*3-4F$"Z3646U$G"$*."$."E<3.";$41$
;.*G$*44"-431-$ 3-$1<.$ *<;341.56$ ."71.4$ 41$ 4@"$ ."/*4";$;36A/16<."6$ 3-$ 4@"$ #3-*-A3*/$ 64*4"2"-46$1.U$ 3#$
6<A@$;36A/16<."6$*."$3-*;"E<*4"U$41$21;3#F$1<.$173-31-N$ $ \<.$A1-A/<631-6$*."$L*6";$1-$4@"$*<;34$
"B3;"-A"$1L4*3-";$<7$ 41$ 4@"$;*4"$1#$ 1<.$ *<;341.56$ ."71.4N$ $ ^1G"B".U$ #<4<."$ "B"-46$1.$ A1-;3431-6$
2*F$A*<6"$4@"$0/<L$41$A"*6"$41$A1-43-<"$*6$*$+13-+$A1-A".-N$
$

&! [B*/<*4"$ 4@"$1B".*//$7."6"-4*431-U$64.<A4<."$*-;$A1-4"-4$1#$ 4@"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46U$ 3-A/<;3-+$ 4@"$
;36A/16<."6U$*-;$G@"4@".$4@"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46$."7."6"-4$4@"$<-;"./F3-+$4.*-6*A431-6$*-;$"B"-46$
3-$*$2*--".$4@*4$*A@3"B"6$#*3.$7."6"-4*431-N$

$
a"$A122<-3A*4"$G34@$ 4@16"$A@*.+";$G34@$+1B".-*-A"$ ."+*.;3-+U$*21-+$14@".$2*44".6U$ 4@"$7/*--";$
6A17"$*-;$4323-+$1#$4@"$*<;34$*-;$63+-3#3A*-4$*<;34$#3-;3-+6U$3-A/<;3-+$*-F$63+-3#3A*-4$;"#3A3"-A3"6$3-$
3-4".-*/$A1-4.1/$4@*4$G"$3;"-43#F$;<.3-+$1<.$*<;34N$
$
$
$
$
$
$

O*Y".$K3//F$^1-+$b1-+$P3234";$

0".43#3";$)<L/3A$&AA1<-4*-46$

^1-+$b1-+U$ $

!F*-$M*2"6$?G*--$

).*A4363-+$A".43#3A*4"$-<2L".$)JD88H$

$

! !!$"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
F)+#4'+)'+:#';0&*&70*-'4+*+#1#&+4'67)&+0&.#%8'

! Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
!
U! C$:%$A$&(%*!(&&3/%*$%:!'3)$&$,-!6&3%*$%/,78!
!
678! "#3',#*>=!')(%*!(%7!,</$'4,%*!

$
).17".4FU$7/*-4$*-;$"E<372"-4$*."$64*4";$*4$A164$/"66$*AA<2</*4";$;"7."A3*431-$*-;$327*3.2"-4$
/166"6$Q6""$-14"$'Q#TQ33TTN$
$
K@"$A164$1#$A1-64.<A431-93-97.1+."66$3-A/<;"6$4@"$A164$1#$2*A@3-".FU$A1-64.<A431-$"Z7"-;34<."6U$
2*4".3*/6$*-;$14@".$A1646$;3."A4/F$*44.3L<4*L/"$41$L.3-+3-+$4@"$*66"46$41$*$G1.Y3-+$A1-;3431-$#1.$
346$3-4"-;";$<6"N$
$
W"7."A3*431-$36$A*/A</*4";$41$G.34"$1##$4@"$A164$1#$34"26$1#$7.17".4FU$7/*-4$*-;$"E<372"-4U$/"66$
4@"3.$"6432*4";$."63;<*/$B*/<"U$3#$*-FU$<63-+$4@"$64.*3+@4$/3-"$2"4@1;$1B".$4@"3.$"6432*4";$<6"#</$
/3B"6$*6$#1//1G6%$ $ $
$ $
9$ $ c<.-34<."$*-;$#3Z4<."6U$Y34A@"-$"E<372"-4$*-;$A127<4".6$ >$F"*.6$
9$ $ O1*4$641.*+"$"E<372"-4$ $ >$F"*.6$
9$ $ V141.$B"@3A/"6U$2141.$L1*46$*-;$6*3/3-+$;3-+@3"6$ >$9$8>$F"*.6$
$
K@"$<6"#</$/3#"$1#$*-$*66"4$*-;$346$."63;<*/$B*/<"U$3#$*-FU$*."$."B3"G";$*--<*//FN$
$
01-64.<A431-93-97.1+."66$36$-14$;"7."A3*4";$<-43/$34$36$A127/"4";$*-;$."*;F$#1.$346$3-4"-;";$<6"N$ $ $
$
,*3-6$ 1.$ /166"6$ *.363-+$ #.12$ 4@"$ ."43."2"-4$ 1.$ ;36716*/$ 1#$ *-$ 34"2$ 1#$ 7.17".4FU$ 7/*-4$ *-;$
"E<372"-4$*."$;"4".23-";$*6$4@"$;3##"."-A"$L"4G""-$4@"$-"4$;36716*/$7.1A"";6$*-;$4@"$A*..F3-+$
*21<-4$1#$4@"$34"2$*-;$*."$."A1+-36";$3-$7.1#34$1.$/166$1-$4@"$;*4"$1#$."43."2"-4$1.$;36716*/N$
$

6,8! L,(-,7!(--,*-! !
$
&4$ 3-A"7431-$1#$*$A1-4.*A4U$ 4@"$0/<L$*66"66"6$G@"4@".$ 4@"$A1-4.*A4$ 36U$1.$A1-4*3-6U$*$ /"*6"N$ $ &$
A1-4.*A4$ 36U$ 1.$ A1-4*3-6U$ *$ /"*6"$ 3#$ 4@"$ A1-4.*A4$ A1-B"F6$ 4@"$ .3+@4$ 41$ A1-4.1/$ 4@"$ <6"$ 1#$ *-$
3;"-43#3";$*66"4$#1.$*$7".31;$1#$432"$3-$"ZA@*-+"$#1.$A1-63;".*431-N$ $ 01-4.1/$36$A1-B"F";$G@"."$
4@"$ A<6412".$ @*6$ L14@$ 4@"$ .3+@4$ 41$ ;3."A4$ 4@"$ <6"$ 1#$ 4@"$ 3;"-43#3";$ *66"4$ *-;$ 41$ 1L4*3-$
6<L64*-43*//F$*//$1#$4@"$"A1-123A$L"-"#346$#.12$4@*4$<6"N$
$

Q3T$ &6$*$/"66""$ $
$
)1/3AF$*77/3A*L/"$#.12$8$M</F$'J8H$
$
&4$4@"$/"*6"$A122"-A"2"-4$;*4"U$4@"$0/<L$."A1+-36"6$*$.3+@491#9<6"$*66"4$*-;$*$/"*6"$/3*L3/34FU$
"ZA"74$#1.$6@1.494".2$/"*6"6$4@*4$@*B"$*$/"*6"$4".2$1#$8'$21-4@6$1.$/"66$*-;$/"*6"6$1#$/1G9B*/<"$
*66"46N$ $ a@"-$ 4@"$0/<L$ "-4".6$ 3-41$ *$ /"*6"$ 3-$ ."67"A4$ 1#$ *$ /1G9B*/<"$ *66"4U$ 4@"$0/<L$;"A3;"6$
G@"4@".$41$A*734*/36"$4@"$/"*6"$1-$*$/"*6"9LF9/"*6"$L*636N$ $ K@"$/"*6"$7*F2"-46$*661A3*4";$G34@$
4@16"$/"*6"6$G@3A@$*."$-14$A*734*/36";$*."$."A1+-36";$*6$*-$"Z7"-6"$1-$*$64.*3+@49/3-"$L*636$1B".$
4@"$/"*6"$4".2N$
$
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 Note 2019  2018
  HKD  HKD 

Revenue 3 46,863,263  46,393,400 

Cost of sales and services  (12,772,001) (12,609,324)

Gross profit  34,091,262  33,784,076 

Other income 4 4,690,360  7,880,529 

Operating expenses 5 (38,370,990) (38,743,009)

Development income  6 4,253,184  4,236,240 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment    5,781,269    302,180 

Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year
and transferred to accumulated fund  10,445,085 7,460,016 

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The notes on pages 20 to 41 form part of these financial statements.

$

! !!%"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
F)+#4'+)'+:#';0&*&70*-'4+*+#1#&+4'67)&+0&.#%8'

! Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
!
U! C$:%$A$&(%*!(&&3/%*$%:!'3)$&$,-!6&3%*$%/,78!
!
6,8! L,(-,7!(--,*-!6&3%*$%/,78!
$
Q3T$ &6$*$/"66""$QA1-43-<";T$

$
)1/3AF$*77/3A*L/"$#.12$8$M</F$'J8H$QA1-43-<";T$
$
a@"."$4@"$/"*6"$36$A*734*/36";U$ 4@"$/"*6"$/3*L3/34F$36$ 3-343*//F$."A1+-36";$*4$ 4@"$7."6"-4$B*/<"$1#$
4@"$/"*6"$7*F2"-46$7*F*L/"$1B".$4@"$/"*6"$4".2U$;36A1<-4";$<63-+$4@"$3-4"."64$.*4"$327/3A34$3-$4@"$
/"*6"$1.U$3#$4@*4$.*4"$A*--14$L"$."*;3/F$;"4".23-";U$<63-+$*$."/"B*-4$3-A."2"-4*/$L1..1G3-+$.*4"N$ $
&#4".$3-343*/$."A1+-3431-U$4@"$/"*6"$/3*L3/34F$36$2"*6<.";$*4$*21.436";$A164$*-;$3-4"."64$"Z7"-6"$36$
A*/A</*4";$<63-+$4@"$"##"A43B"$3-4"."64$2"4@1;N$ $ ]*.3*L/"$/"*6"$7*F2"-46$4@*4$;1$-14$;"7"-;$1-$
*-$3-;"Z$1.$.*4"$*."$-14$3-A/<;";$3-$4@"$2"*6<."2"-4$1#$4@"$/"*6"$/3*L3/34F$*-;$@"-A"$*."$A@*.+";$
41$7.1#34$1.$/166$3-$4@"$*AA1<-43-+$7".31;$3-$G@3A@$4@"F$*."$3-A<..";N$
$
K@"$/"*6"$/3*L3/34F$36$."2"*6<.";$G@"-$4@"."$36$*$A@*-+"$3-$#<4<."$/"*6"$7*F2"-46$*.363-+$#.12$*$
A@*-+"$3-$*-$3-;"Z$1.$.*4"U$1.$4@"."$36$*$A@*-+"$3-$4@"$0/<L56$"6432*4"$1#$4@"$*21<-4$"Z7"A4";$41$
L"$7*F*L/"$<-;".$*$."63;<*/$B*/<"$+<*.*-4""U$1.$4@"."$36$*$A@*-+"$*.363-+$#.12$4@"$."*66"662"-4$
1#$G@"4@".$4@"$0/<L$G3//$L"$."*61-*L/F$A".4*3-$41$"Z".A36"$*$7<.A@*6"U$"Z4"-631-$1.$4".23-*431-$
17431-N$ $ a@"-$ 4@"$ /"*6"$ /3*L3/34F$ 36$ ."2"*6<.";$ 3-$ 4@36$ G*FU$ *$ A1.."671-;3-+$ *;X<642"-4$ 36$
2*;"$ 41$ 4@"$ A*..F3-+$ *21<-4$ 1#$ 4@"$ .3+@491#9<6"$ *66"4U$ 1.$ 36$ ."A1.;";$ 3-$ 7.1#34$ 1.$ /166$ 3#$ 4@"$
A*..F3-+$*21<-4$1#$4@"$.3+@491#9<6"$*66"4$@*6$L""-$.";<A";$41$`".1N$
$
K@"$.3+@491#9<6"$*66"4$."A1+-36";$G@"-$*$/"*6"$36$A*734*/36";$36$3-343*//F$2"*6<.";$*4$A164U$G@3A@$
A127.36"6$4@"$3-343*/$*21<-4$1#$4@"$/"*6"$/3*L3/34F$7/<6$*-F$/"*6"$7*F2"-46$2*;"$*4$1.$L"#1."$4@"$
A122"-A"2"-4$ ;*4"U$ *-;$ *-F$ 3-343*/$ ;3."A4$ A1646$ 3-A<..";N$ $ K@"$ .3+@491#9<6"$ *66"4$ 36$
6<L6"E<"-4/F$ 64*4";$ *4$ A164$ /"66$ *AA<2</*4";$ ;"7."A3*431-$ *-;$ 327*3.2"-4$ /166"6$ Q6""$ -14"$
'Q#TQ33TTN$ $ W"7."A3*431-$ 36$ A*/A</*4";$ 41$ G.34"$ 1##$ 4@"$ A164$ 1#$ .3+@491#9<6"$ *66"46$ <63-+$ 4@"$
64.*3+@4$/3-"$2"4@1;$1B".$4@"$/"*6"$4".2N$
$
)1/3AF$*77/3A*L/"$7.31.$41$8$M</F$'J8H$
$
:-$4@"$A127*.*43B"$7".31;U$*6$*$/"66""$4@"$0/<L$A/*663#3";$/"*6"6$*6$#3-*-A"$/"*6"6$3#$4@"$/"*6"6$
4.*-6#"..";$6<L64*-43*//F$*//$4@"$.36Y6$*-;$."G*.;6$1#$1G-".6@37$41$4@"$0/<LN$ $ P"*6"6$G@3A@$;3;$
-14$4.*-6#".$6<L64*-43*//F$*//$4@"$.36Y6$*-;$."G*.;6$1#$1G-".6@37$41$4@"$0/<L$G"."$A/*663#3";$*6$
17".*43-+$/"*6"6N$
$
a@"."$ 4@"$0/<L$@*;$ 4@"$<6"$1#$ *66"46$@"/;$<-;".$17".*43-+$ /"*6"6U$ 7*F2"-46$2*;"$<-;".$ 4@"$
/"*6"6$G"."$A@*.+";$41$7.1#34$1.$/166$3-$"E<*/$3-64*/2"-46$1B".$4@"$*AA1<-43-+$7".31;6$A1B".";$
LF$4@"$/"*6"$4".2U$"ZA"74$G@"."$*-$*/4".-*43B"$L*636$G*6$21."$."7."6"-4*43B"$1#$4@"$7*44".-$1#$
L"-"#346$ 41$ L"$ ;".3B";$ #.12$ 4@"$ /"*6";$ *66"4N$ $ P"*6"$ 3-A"-43B"6$ ."A"3B";$G"."$ ."A1+-36";$ 3-$
7.1#34$1.$/166$*6$*-$3-4"+.*/$7*.4$1#$4@"$*++."+*4"$-"4$/"*6"$7*F2"-46$2*;"N$ $ 01-43-+"-4$."-4*/6$
G"."$A@*.+";$41$7.1#34$1.$/166$3-$4@"$*AA1<-43-+$7".31;$3-$G@3A@$4@"F$G"."$3-A<..";N$
$

$

! ! ("

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
<+*+#1#&+');'5$);0+')$'-)44'*&%')+:#$'7)15$#:#&40=#'0&7)1#'
;)$'+:#'>#*$'#&%#%'?@'A.&#'B@B@'
Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T'
$
!
$ $ $ $
$ I14"$ 'J'J$ 'J8H$
$ $ ^bW$ ^bW$
$ $ $ $
B,+,%/,! =$ d(UD(JUHJ'$ dCU(C=U'C=$
$ $ $ $
0164$1#$6*/"6$*-;$6".B3A"6$ $ Q8=U(=8U8=(T$ Q8'UDD'UJJ8T$
$ $ $ $
1#3--!'#3A$*! $ =dUHdHUDCd$ =dUJH8U'C'$
$ $ $ $
\4@".$3-A12"$ d$ CU=CJU>>D$ dUCHJU=CJ$
$ $ $ $
\7".*43-+$"Z7"-6"6$ >$ Qd=UdC>U=CJT$ Q=(U=DJUHHJT$
$ $ $ $
W"B"/172"-4$3-A12"$ $ C$ dU'JHU8'J$ $ dU'>=U8(d$
$ $ $ $
QP166Te+*3-$1-$;36716*/$1#$7.17".4FU$7/*-4$*-;$"E<372"-4$ $ $ Q$ ! $ ! >U>>CT$ $ >UD(8U'CH$
! $ $ $
C/#')/-!A#34!3',#(*$3%-! ! $ 'UJd(U>'>$ 8JUdd>UJ(>$
$ $ $ $
c3-*-A"$A1646$ $ D$ Q$ ! ! 8dUJCJT$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ ! 9$
$ $ $ $
C/#')/-!(%7!*3*()!&34'#,;,%-$+,!$%&34,!A3#!*;,!>,(#! !
! ! (%7!*#(%-A,##,7!*3!(&&/4/)(*,7!A/%7!

$
$ 'UJ=dUdC>$ 8JUdd>UJ(>$

$ $ $ $
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
K@"$-14"6$1-$7*+"6$8J$41$=8$#1.2$7*.4$1#$4@"6"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46N$
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The notes on pages 20 to 41 form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

 Note 2019 2018
  HKD HKD

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 33,523,331 25,715,638

Current assets
Inventories 9 814,771 695,480
Accounts receivable from members 10 5,167,036 4,937,711
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables   4,230,233 2,283,701
Fixed bank deposits 11 29,576,740 5,070,635
Cash and cash equivalents 11 13,459,974 36,908,540

  53,248,754 49,896,067

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued charges  4,031,820 3,933,580
Mooring income in advance   356,120 330,683
Contract liabilities  12 2,621,360 2,029,742

  7,009,300 6,294,005

Net current assets  46,239,454 43,602,062
   
NET ASSETS  79,762,785 69,317,700

FUNDS EMPLOYED 31 

Accumulated fund  79,762,785 69,317,700

Approved and authorised for issue by the General Committee on

Christopher Pooley Matthew Johnson
Commodore rerusaerT yraronoH 
On behalf of the General Committee On behalf of the General Committee

!

! ! )"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
<+*+#1#&+');';0&*&70*-'5)40+0)&'*4'*+'?@'A.&#'B@B@'
Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T'
$ I14"$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 'J'J$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 'J8H$
$ $ ^bW$ ^bW$
! ! ! !

D3%E&/##,%*!(--,*-! $ $ $
).17".4FU$7/*-4$*-;$"E<372"-4$ H$ =>U(H=U8DD$ ==U>'=U==8$
!3+@491#9<6"$*66"46$ 8J$ $ $ ! '=JUJ(d$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ ! 9$
! ! ! !
$ $ =CU8'=U'C8$ ==U>'=U==8$
! ! ! !
2/##,%*!(--,*-$ $ $ $
:-B"-41.3"6$ 88$ 8U88DUd8D$ (8dUDD8$
&AA1<-46$."A"3B*L/"$#.12$2"2L".6$ 8'$ >U=8>UJJJ$ >U8CDUJ=C$
W"716346U$7."7*F2"-46$*-;$14@".$."A"3B*L/"6$ $ $ 'U>'dU8C8$ dU'=JU'==$
c3Z";$L*-Y$;"716346$ 8=$ =JUJDdUCDD$ 'HU>DCUDdJ$
0*6@$*-;$A*6@$"E<3B*/"-46$ 8=$ 8CU'H8UHCd$ 8=Ud>HUHDd$
! ! ! !
$ $ >>U='=U'8H$ >=U'd(UD>d$
! ! ! !
2/##,%*!)$(5$)$*$,-$ $ $ $
&AA1<-46$7*F*L/"$*-;$*AA.<";$A@*.+"6$ $ dU=(dU>>D$ dUJ=8U('J$
V11.3-+$3-A12"$3-$*;B*-A"$ $ $ =(DU(>8$ =>CU8'J$
\4@".$."A"3746$3-$*;B*-A"$ $ 8U'DdU=8J$ 9$
01-4.*A4$/3*L3/343"6$ $ 8d$ ! ! =UdJHUd'H$ $ 'UC'8U=CJ$
P"*6"$/3*L3/343"6$ $ 8>$ $ $ ! 88=UdCH$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ ! 9$
! ! ! !
$ $ $ HU>CHUC8C$ $ DUJJHU=JJ$
! ! ! !
D,*!&/##,%*!(--,*-! $ d>UD>=UCJ=$ dCU'=HUd>d$
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,.*"2"$O."A@3-U$!"*.$01221;1."$ Q!"9"/"A4";$1-$'C$I1B"2L".$'J8HT$
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V*.43-$,*-`$ $
!3A@*.;$a*/Y".$ $ $
?*2$0@"-+$ $
?4"7@"-$)".."4$ $
$
$
$

18

  2019 2018
  HKD HKD

Accumulated fund at 1 July  69,317,700 61,857,684

Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year  10,445,085 7,460,016

Accumulated fund at 30 June  79,762,785 69,317,700

The notes on pages 20 to 41 form part of these financial statements.

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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/11Y3-+$3-#1.2*431-$4@*4$36$*B*3/*L/"$G34@1<4$<-;<"$A164$1.$"##1.4N$
$
:-$7*.43A</*.U$4@"$#1//1G3-+$3-#1.2*431-$36$4*Y"-$3-41$*AA1<-4$G@"-$*66"663-+$G@"4@".$A.";34$.36Y$
@*6$3-A."*6";$63+-3#3A*-4/F$63-A"$3-343*/$."A1+-3431-%$
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ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

  Note 2019  2018 
   HKD  HKD 

Operating activities

Surplus for the year  10,445,085  7,460,016 
Adjustments for:
- Interest income 4 (     329,713) (     163,950)
- Reversal of provision for impairment loss on accounts receivable 4 (         8,270) -
- Depreciation 5 4,873,679  2,658,352 
- Provision for impairment loss on accounts receivable 5 -  48,000 
- Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (  5,781,269) (     302,180)

Operating surplus before changes in working capital  9,199,512  9,700,238 

Increase in inventories  (     119,291) (       49,564)
Increase in accounts receivable from members  (     221,055) (     109,077)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and other receivables   (  1,946,532) (     642,232)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued charges  98,240  435,771 
Increase in mooring income in advance   25,437  90,798 
Increase in contract liabilities      591,618      21,940 

Net cash generated from operating activities   7,627,929   9,447,874 

Investing activities

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment  (13,159,813) (  8,916,912)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  6,259,710  453,594 
Increase in fixed bank deposits  (24,506,105) (       34,065)
Interest received     329,713     163,950 

Net cash used in investing activities  (31,076,495) (  8,333,433)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (23,448,566) 1,114,441 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July  36,908,540  35,794,099 

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 11 13,459,974  36,908,540 

The notes on pages 20 to 41 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 Club information

 Aberdeen Boat Club Limited (the “Club”) is incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its 
registered office and principal place of business at 20 Shum Wan Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

 The Club is limited by guarantee with no share capital.  In accordance with current Hong Kong 
tax legislation, the Club is not subject to profits tax on any operating surpluses if more than 50% 
of the gross receipts are derived from voting members of the Club.

2 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong 
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable 
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards 
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the 
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.  A summary of the significant 
accounting policies adopted by the Club is set out below.

 The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for 
early adoption for the current accounting period of the Club.  Note 2(c) provides information on 
the changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the 
extent that they are relevant to the Club for the years reflected in these financial statements. 

 The Club has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the 
current accounting period (see note 17).

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

 The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost 
basis.

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods.

!

! ! #"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*!
!
2#&#$*-',)110++##34'$#5)$+'67)&+0&.#%8'
$
$
1,%,#()!2344$**,,!4,45,#-!6&3%*$%/,78!
$
:-$*AA1.;*-A"$G34@$&.43A/"6$'HQLT$*-;$'HQAT$1#$4@"$0/<L56$&.43A/"6$1#$&661A3*431-U$4@"$1##3A".6$1#$4@"$
0/<L$ G@1$ @*B"$ @"/;$ 1##3A"$ #1.$ 4G1$ A1-6"A<43B"$ F"*.6$ *-;$ @*/#$ 1#$ 4@"$ 2"2L".6$ 1#$ 4@"$ ,"-".*/$
0122344""$G@1$@*B"$ L""-$ /1-+"64$ 3-$ 1##3A"$ 63-A"$ 4@"3.$ /*64$ "/"A431-$ 6@*//$ ."43."$ *4$ 4@"$ #1.4@A123-+$
&--<*/$,"-".*/$V""43-+N$ $ !"43.3-+$1##3A".6$*-;$2"2L".6$1#$4@"$,"-".*/$0122344""$6@*//$L"$"/3+3L/"$
#1.$."9"/"A431-N$
$
1,%,#()!2344$**,,!4,45,#-9!#$:;*-!*3!(&</$#,!-;(#,-!(%7!7,5,%*/#,-!
$
&4$-1$432"$;<.3-+$4@"$F"*.$G*6$4@"$0/<L$*$7*.4F$41$*-F$*..*-+"2"-4$41$"-*L/"$4@"$,"-".*/$0122344""$
2"2L".6$1#$4@"$0/<L$41$*AE<3."$L"-"#346$LF$2"*-6$1#$4@"$*AE<363431-$1#$6@*."6$3-$1.$;"L"-4<."6$1#$4@"$
0/<L$1.$*-F$14@".$L1;F$A1.71.*4"N$
$
1,%,#()!2344$**,,!4,45,#-9!$%*,#,-*-!$%!*#(%-(&*$3%-=!(##(%:,4,%*-!3#!&3%*#(&*-!
!
I1$4.*-6*A431-6U$*..*-+"2"-46$*-;$A1-4.*A46$1#$63+-3#3A*-A"$3-$."/*431-$41$4@"$0/<L56$L<63-"66$41$G@3A@$
4@"$0/<L$G*6$*$7*.4F$*-;$3-$G@3A@$*$,"-".*/$0122344""$2"2L".$1#$4@"$0/<L$@*;$*$2*4".3*/$3-4"."64U$
G@"4@".$;3."A4/F$1.$3-;3."A4/FU$6<L6364";$*4$4@"$"-;$1#$4@"$F"*.$1.$*4$*-F$432"$;<.3-+$4@"$F"*.N$
!
",#4$**,7!$%7,4%$*>!'#3+$-$3%!
$
&4$ -1$ 432"$;<.3-+$ 4@"$F"*.$ *-;$<7$ 41$ ;*4"$ 1#$ 4@36$ ."71.4U$ 4@"."$G*6$1.$ 36U$ *-F$7".2344";$ 3-;"2-34F$
7.1B3631-$ L"3-+$ 3-$ #1.A"$ #1.$ 4@"$ L"-"#34$ 1#$ 4@"$,"-".*/$ 0122344""$2"2L".6$ 1#$ 4@"$ 0/<LU$ G@"4@".$
2*;"$LF$4@"$0/<L$1.$14@".G36"N$
$
?/7$*3#!
$
O*Y".$K3//F$^1-+$b1-+$P3234";$."43."$*-;U$L"3-+$"/3+3L/"U$1##".$4@"26"/B"6$#1.$."9*7713-42"-4N$ $ &$
."61/<431-$#1.$4@"$."9*7713-42"-4$1#$O*Y".$K3//F$^1-+$b1-+$P3234";$*6$*<;341.$1#$4@"$0/<L$36$41$L"$
7.1716";$*4$4@"$#1.4@A123-+$&--<*/$,"-".*/$V""43-+N$ $
$
$
OF$1.;".$1#$4@"$,"-".*/$0122344""$
$
$
$
$
$
0@.36417@".$)11/"F$
01221;1."$

^1-+$b1-+U$
$

$

! !!,"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
F)+#4'+)'+:#';0&*&70*-'4+*+#1#&+4'

! Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
!
N! 2)/5!$%A3#4(*$3%!

$
&L".;""-$O1*4$0/<L$P3234";$Q4@"$R0/<LST$36$3-A1.71.*4";$*-;$;123A3/";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$*-;$@*6$
346$ ."+364".";$1##3A"$ *-;$7.3-A37*/$ 7/*A"$1#$ L<63-"66$ *4$ 'J$?@<2$a*-$!1*;U$&L".;""-U$^1-+$
b1-+N$
$
K@"$ 0/<L$ 36$ /3234";$ LF$ +<*.*-4""$ G34@$ -1$ 6@*."$ A*734*/N$ $ :-$ *AA1.;*-A"$ G34@$ A<.."-4$ ^1-+$
b1-+$4*Z$/"+36/*431-U$ 4@"$0/<L$36$-14$6<LX"A4$ 41$7.1#346$ 4*Z$1-$*-F$17".*43-+$6<.7/<6"6$3#$21."$
4@*-$>Jg$1#$4@"$+.166$."A"3746$*."$;".3B";$#.12$B143-+$2"2L".6$1#$4@"$0/<LN$

!
U! C$:%$A$&(%*!(&&3/%*$%:!'3)$&$,-!
!
6(8! C*(*,4,%*!3A!&34')$(%&,!

$
K@"6"$ #3-*-A3*/$ 64*4"2"-46$@*B"$L""-$7."7*.";$ 3-$ *AA1.;*-A"$G34@$ *//$ *77/3A*L/"$^1-+$b1-+$
c3-*-A3*/$ !"71.43-+$ ?4*-;*.;6$ QR^bc!?6STU$ G@3A@$ A1//"A43B"$ 4".2$ 3-A/<;"6$ *//$ *77/3A*L/"$
3-;3B3;<*/$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ c3-*-A3*/$ !"71.43-+$ ?4*-;*.;6U$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ &AA1<-43-+$ ?4*-;*.;6$
QR^b&?6ST$ *-;$ :-4".7."4*431-6$ 366<";$ LF$ 4@"$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ :-6434<4"$ 1#$ 0".43#3";$ )<L/3A$
&AA1<-4*-46$ QR^b:0)&STU$ *AA1<-43-+$ 7.3-A37/"6$ +"-".*//F$ *AA"74";$ 3-$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ *-;$ 4@"$
."E<3."2"-46$ 1#$ 4@"$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ 0127*-3"6$ \.;3-*-A"N$ $ &$ 6<22*.F$ 1#$ 4@"$ 63+-3#3A*-4$
*AA1<-43-+$71/3A3"6$*;174";$LF$4@"$0/<L$36$6"4$1<4$L"/1GN$
$
K@"$^b:0)&$@*6$366<";$A".4*3-$-"G$*-;$."B36";$^bc!?6$4@*4$*."$#3.64$"##"A43B"$1.$*B*3/*L/"$
#1.$ "*./F$ *;17431-$ #1.$ 4@"$ A<.."-4$ *AA1<-43-+$ 7".31;$ 1#$ 4@"$ 0/<LN$ $ I14"$ 'QAT$ 7.1B3;"6$
3-#1.2*431-$ 1-$ *-F$ A@*-+"6$ 3-$ *AA1<-43-+$ 71/3A3"6$ ."6</43-+$ #.12$ 3-343*/$ *77/3A*431-$ 1#$ 4@"6"$
;"B"/172"-46$ 41$ 4@"$ "Z4"-4$ 4@*4$ 4@"F$ *."$ ."/"B*-4$ 41$ 4@"$0/<L$ #1.$ 4@"$F"*.6$ ."#/"A4";$ 3-$ 4@"6"$
#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46N$ $ $
$
K@"$0/<L$ @*6$ -14$ *77/3";$ *-F$ -"G$ 64*-;*.;$ 1.$ 3-4".7."4*431-$ 4@*4$ 36$ -14$ F"4$ "##"A43B"$ #1.$ 4@"$
A<.."-4$*AA1<-43-+$7".31;$Q6""$-14"$'8TN$
$

658! .(-$-!3A!'#,'(#(*$3%!3A!*;,!A$%(%&$()!-*(*,4,%*-!
$
K@"$2"*6<."2"-4$L*636$<6";$3-$4@"$7."7*.*431-$1#$4@"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46$36$4@"$@3641.3A*/$A164$
L*636N$
$
K@"$7."7*.*431-$1#$ #3-*-A3*/$ 64*4"2"-46$ 3-$ A1-#1.234F$G34@$^bc!?6$ ."E<3."6$2*-*+"2"-4$ 41$
2*Y"$X<;+"2"-46U$"6432*4"6$*-;$*66<27431-6$4@*4$*##"A4$4@"$*77/3A*431-$1#$71/3A3"6$*-;$."71.4";$
*21<-46$1#$*66"46U$/3*L3/343"6U$3-A12"$*-;$"Z7"-6"6N$ $ K@"$"6432*4"6$*-;$*661A3*4";$*66<27431-6$
*."$L*6";$1-$@3641.3A*/$"Z7".3"-A"$*-;$B*.31<6$14@".$#*A41.6$4@*4$*."$L"/3"B";$41$L"$."*61-*L/"$
<-;".$ 4@"$A3.A<264*-A"6U$ 4@"$."6</46$1#$G@3A@$#1.2$4@"$L*636$1#$2*Y3-+$ 4@"$ X<;+"2"-46$*L1<4$
A*..F3-+$ B*/<"6$ 1#$ *66"46$ *-;$ /3*L3/343"6$ 4@*4$ *."$ -14$ ."*;3/F$ *77*."-4$ #.12$ 14@".$ 61<.A"6N$ $
&A4<*/$."6</46$2*F$;3##".$#.12$4@"6"$"6432*4"6N$
$
K@"$ "6432*4"6$ *-;$ <-;"./F3-+$ *66<27431-6$ *."$ ."B3"G";$ 1-$ *-$ 1-+13-+$ L*636N$ $ !"B3631-6$ 41$
*AA1<-43-+$"6432*4"6$*."$."A1+-36";$3-$4@"$7".31;$3-$G@3A@$4@"$"6432*4"$36$."B36";$3#$4@"$."B3631-$
*##"A46$1-/F$4@*4$7".31;U$1.$3-$4@"$7".31;$1#$4@"$."B3631-$*-;$#<4<."$7".31;6$3#$4@"$."B3631-$*##"A46$
L14@$A<.."-4$*-;$#<4<."$7".31;6N$

$

! !!*"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
F)+#4'+)'+:#';0&*&70*-'4+*+#1#&+4'67)&+0&.#%8'

! Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
!
U! C$:%$A$&(%*!(&&3/%*$%:!'3)$&$,-!6&3%*$%/,78!

$
6:8! S%+,%*3#$,-!6&3%*$%/,78!

$
a@"-$3-B"-41.3"6$*."$61/;U$4@"$A*..F3-+$*21<-4$1#$4@16"$3-B"-41.3"6$36$."A1+-36";$*6$*-$"Z7"-6"$
3-$ 4@"$7".31;$ 3-$G@3A@$ 4@"$ ."/*4";$ ."B"-<"$ 36$ ."A1+-36";N$ $ K@"$*21<-4$1#$*-F$G.34"9;1G-$1#$
3-B"-41.3"6$41$-"4$."*/36*L/"$B*/<"$*-;$*//$/166"6$1#$3-B"-41.3"6$*."$."A1+-36";$*6$*-$"Z7"-6"$3-$
4@"$7".31;$ 4@"$G.34"9;1G-$1.$ /166$1AA<.6N$ $ K@"$*21<-4$1#$*-F$."B".6*/$1#$*-F$G.34"9;1G-$1#$
3-B"-41.3"6$36$."A1+-36";$*6$*$.";<A431-$3-$4@"$*21<-4$1#$3-B"-41.3"6$."A1+-36";$*6$*-$"Z7"-6"$
3-$4@"$7".31;$3-$G@3A@$4@"$."B".6*/$1AA<.6N$
$

6;8! 23%*#(&*!(--,*-!(%7!&3%*#(&*!)$(5$)$*$,-!
$
&$A1-4.*A4$*66"4$ 36$ ."A1+-36";$G@"-$4@"$0/<L$."A1+-36"6$."B"-<"$Q6""$-14"$'Q-TT$L"#1."$L"3-+$
<-A1-;3431-*//F$ "-434/";$ 41$ 4@"$ A1-63;".*431-$<-;".$ 4@"$7*F2"-4$ 4".26$ 6"4$ 1<4$ 3-$ 4@"$ A1-4.*A4N$ $
01-4.*A4$*66"46$*."$*66"66";$#1.$[0P6$3-$*AA1.;*-A"$G34@$4@"$*AA1<-43-+$71/3AF$6"4$1<4$3-$-14"$
'Q#TQ3T$ *-;$ *."$ ."A/*663#3";$ 41$ ."A"3B*L/"6$ G@"-$ 4@"$ .3+@4$ 41$ 4@"$ A1-63;".*431-$ @*6$ L"A12"$
<-A1-;3431-*/N$
$
&$ A1-4.*A4$ /3*L3/34F$ 36$ ."A1+-36";$ G@"-$ 4@"$ A<6412".$ 7*F6$ A1-63;".*431-$ L"#1."$ 4@"$ 0/<L$
."A1+-36"6$ 4@"$ ."/*4";$ ."B"-<"$ Q6""$ -14"$ 'Q-TTN$ $ &$ A1-4.*A4$ /3*L3/34F$ 36$ */61$ ."A1+-36";$ 3#$ 4@"$
0/<L$@*6$*-$<-A1-;3431-*/$.3+@4$41$."A"3B"$A1-63;".*431-$L"#1."$4@"$0/<L$."A1+-36"6$4@"$."/*4";$
."B"-<"N$ $ :-$6<A@$A*6"6U$*$A1.."671-;3-+$."A"3B*L/"$36$*/61$."A1+-36";N$
$
c1.$*$63-+/"$A1-4.*A4$G34@$4@"$A<6412".U$"34@".$*$-"4$A1-4.*A4$*66"4$1.$*$-"4$A1-4.*A4$/3*L3/34F$36$
7."6"-4";N$ $ c1.$2</437/"$A1-4.*A46U$A1-4.*A4$*66"46$*-;$A1-4.*A4$/3*L3/343"6$1#$<-."/*4";$A1-4.*A46$
*."$-14$7."6"-4";$1-$*$-"4$L*636N$
$

6$8! B,&,$+(5),-!
$
&$."A"3B*L/"$36$."A1+-36";$G@"-$4@"$0/<L$@*6$*-$<-A1-;3431-*/$.3+@4$41$."A"3B"$A1-63;".*431-N$ $
&$.3+@4$41$."A"3B"$A1-63;".*431-$36$<-A1-;3431-*/$3#$1-/F$4@"$7*66*+"$1#$432"$36$."E<3.";$L"#1."$
7*F2"-4$1#$4@*4$A1-63;".*431-$36$;<"N$ $ :#$."B"-<"$@*6$L""-$."A1+-36";$L"#1."$4@"$0/<L$@*6$*-$
<-A1-;3431-*/$ .3+@4$ 41$ ."A"3B"$ A1-63;".*431-U$ 4@"$ *21<-4$ 36$ 7."6"-4";$ *6$ *$ A1-4.*A4$ *66"4$ Q6""$
-14"$'Q@TTN$ $ $
$
!"A"3B*L/"6$*."$64*4";$*4$*21.436";$A164$<63-+$4@"$"##"A43B"$3-4"."64$2"4@1;$/"66$*//1G*-A"$#1.$
[0P6$Q6""$-14"$'Q#TQ3TTN$
$

6V8! 2(-;!(%7!&(-;!,</$+(),%*-!
$
0*6@$*-;$A*6@$"E<3B*/"-46$A127.36"$A*6@$*4$L*-Y$*-;$1-$@*-;U$;"2*-;$;"716346$G34@$L*-Y6$*-;$
14@".$ #3-*-A3*/$ 3-6434<431-6U$ *-;$ 6@1.494".2U$ @3+@/F$ /3E<3;$ 3-B"642"-46$ 4@*4$ *."$ ."*;3/F$
A1-B".43L/"$ 3-41$ Y-1G-$ *21<-46$ 1#$ A*6@$ *-;$ G@3A@$ *."$ 6<LX"A4$ 41$ *-$ 3-63+-3#3A*-4$ .36Y$ 1#$
A@*-+"6$3-$B*/<"U$@*B3-+$L""-$G34@3-$4@.""$21-4@6$1#$2*4<.34F$*4$*AE<363431-N$ $ 0*6@$*-;$A*6@$
"E<3B*/"-46$*."$*66"66";$#1.$[0P6$Q6""$-14"$'Q#TQ3TTN$
$



21

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

!
!

! ! +"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
<+*+#1#&+');'7*4:';-)E4'
;)$'+:#'>#*$'#&%#%'?@'A.&#'B@B@'
Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
$ I14"$ 'J'J$ 'J8H$
$ $ ^bW$ ^bW$
! ! ! !
@',#(*$%:!(&*$+$*$,-! $ $ $
! ! ! !
?<.7/<6$#1.$4@"$F"*.$ $ 'UJ=dUdC>$ 8JUdd>UJ(>$
&;X<642"-46$#1.%$ $ $ $
9$:-4"."64$3-A12"$ d$ Q$ $ ! >d(U'=CT$ Q$ $ ! ='HUD8=T$
9$!"B".6*/$1#$7.1B3631-$#1.$327*3.2"-4$/166$1-$*AA1<-46$ $
$ $ $ ."A"3B*L/"$

$
d$

$
Q! ! $ ! 8JU=8dT$

$
Q$ $ $ $ ! (U'DJT$

9$W"7."A3*431-$1#$7.17".4FU$7/*-4$*-;$"E<372"-4$ >$ CUCD8U(>d$ dU(D=UCDH$
9$W"7."A3*431-$1#$.3+@491#9<6"$*66"46$ >$ 8>=U=(H$ 9$
9$c3-*-A"$A1646$ D$ 8dUJCJ$ 9$
9$P166eQ+*3-T$1-$;36716*/$1#$7.17".4FU$7/*-4$*-;$"E<372"-4$ $ ! $ ! $ $ >U>>C$ Q$ !>UD(8U'CHT$
! ! ! !
@',#(*$%:!-/#')/-!5,A3#,!&;(%:,-!$%!03#R$%:!&('$*()$ $ (U='JUDDd$ HU8HHU>8'$
! ! ! !
:-A."*6"$3-$3-B"-41.3"6$ $ Q$ $ ! =J'UCdCT$ Q$ $ ! 88HU'H8T$
:-A."*6"$3-$*AA1<-46$."A"3B*L/"$#.12$2"2L".6$ $ Q$ $ ! 8=DUC>JT$ Q$ $ ! ''8UJ>>T$
W"A."*6"eQ3-A."*6"T$3-$;"716346U$7."7*F2"-46$*-;$ $
14@".$."A"3B*L/"6$ $

$ $
8UDJCUJD'$

$
Q$ !8UHdCU>='T$

:-A."*6"$3-$*AA1<-46$7*F*L/"$*-;$*AA.<";$A@*.+"6$ $ =>'UD=D$ H(U'dJ$
:-A."*6"$3-$211.3-+$3-A12"$3-$*;B*-A"$ $ $ =8UD=8$ '>Ud=D$
:-A."*6"$3-$14@".$."A"3746$3-$*;B*-A"$ $ $ 8U'DdU=8J$ ! $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 9$
:-A."*6"$3-$A1-4.*A4$/3*L3/343"6$ $ $ $ $ ! D((UJCH$ $ $ ! >H8UC8($
! ! ! !
D,*!&(-;!:,%,#(*,7!A#34!3',#(*$%:!(&*$+$*$,-! $ 8'UJ==U=HD$ $ DUC'DUH'H$
! ! ! !
S%+,-*$%:!(&*$+$*$,-! $ $ $
)*F2"-4$#1.$7<.A@*6"$1#$7.17".4FU$7/*-4$*-;$"E<372"-4! $ Q$ !HU'''U'>CT$ Q8=U8>HU(8=T$
).1A"";6$#.12$;36716*/$1#$7.17".4FU$7/*-4$*-;$"E<372"-4$ $ 8D>UJJJ$ CU'>HUD8J$
:-A."*6"$3-$#3Z";$L*-Y$;"716346$ $ Q$ $ ! dHDUH=DT$ Q'dU>JCU8J>T$
:-4"."64$."A"3B";$ $ $ $ ! >d(U'=C$ $ $ ! ='HUD8=$
! ! ! !
D,*!&(-;!/-,7!$%!$%+,-*$%:!(&*$+$*$,-$ $ Q$ !(UHHCUH>DT$ Q=8UJDCUdH>T$
! ! ! !
H$%(%&$%:!(&*$+$*$,-! $ $ $
0*734*/$"/"2"-4$1#$/"*6"$."-4*/6$7*3;$ 8D$ Q$ $ ! 8HJU=HJT$ 9$
:-4"."64$"/"2"-4$1#$/"*6"$."-4*/6$7*3;$ 8D$ Q$ $ $ ! 8dUJCJT$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ ! 9$
! ! ! !
D,*!&(-;!/-,7!$%!A$%(%&$%:!(&*$+$*$,-! ! $ Q$ $ ! 'JdUd>JT$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ ! 9$
! ! ! !
D,*!$%&#,(-,T67,&#,(-,8!$%!&(-;!(%7!&(-;!,</$+(),%*-! $ 'U(=8UHHJ$ Q'=Udd(U>CCT$
! ! ! !
2(-;!(%7!&(-;!,</$+(),%*-!(*!N!O/)>! $ 8=Ud>HUHDd$ =CUHJ(U>dJ$
! ! ! !
2(-;!(%7!&(-;!,</$+(),%*-!(*!PQ!O/%,! ! 8=$ 8CU'H8UHCd$ 8=Ud>HUHDd$
! $ $ $
$
$
$
K@"$-14"6$1-$7*+"6$8J$41$=8$#1.2$7*.4$1#$4@"6"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46N$

$

! !!)"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
F)+#4'+)'+:#';0&*&70*-'4+*+#1#&+4'67)&+0&.#%8'

! Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
!
U! C$:%$A$&(%*!(&&3/%*$%:!'3)$&$,-!6&3%*$%/,78!

$
6A8! 2#,7$*!)3--,-!(%7!$4'($#4,%*!3A!(--,*-!6&3%*$%/,78!

$
Q33T$ :27*3.2"-4$1#$14@".$*66"46$QA1-43-<";T$

$
9$ 0*/A</*431-$1#$."A1B".*L/"$*21<-4$
$

K@"$."A1B".*L/"$*21<-4$1#$*-$*66"4$ 36$ 4@"$+."*4".$1#$346$#*3.$B*/<"$/"66$A1646$1#$;36716*/$
*-;$ B*/<"$ 3-$ <6"N$ $ :-$ *66"663-+$ B*/<"$ 3-$ <6"U$ 4@"$ "6432*4";$ #<4<."$ A*6@$ #/1G6$ *."$
;36A1<-4";$41$4@"3.$7."6"-4$B*/<"$<63-+$*$7."94*Z$;36A1<-4$.*4"$4@*4$."#/"A46$A<.."-4$2*.Y"4$
*66"662"-46$1#$432"$B*/<"$1#$21-"F$*-;$4@"$.36Y6$67"A3#3A$41$4@"$*66"4N$ $ a@"."$*-$*66"4$
;1"6$ -14$ +"-".*4"$ A*6@$ 3-#/1G6$ /*.+"/F$ 3-;"7"-;"-4$ 1#$ 4@16"$ #.12$ 14@".$ *66"46U$ 4@"$
."A1B".*L/"$ *21<-4$ 36$ ;"4".23-";$ #1.$ 4@"$ 62*//"64$ +.1<7$ 1#$ *66"46$ 4@*4$ +"-".*4"6$ A*6@$
3-#/1G6$3-;"7"-;"-4/F$Q3N"N$*$A*6@9+"-".*43-+$<-34TN$

$
9$ !"A1+-3431-$1#$327*3.2"-4$/166"6$
$

&-$327*3.2"-4$/166$36$."A1+-36";$3-$7.1#34$1.$/166$3#$4@"$A*..F3-+$*21<-4$1#$*-$*66"4U$1.$
4@"$A*6@9+"-".*43-+$<-34$41$G@3A@$34$L"/1-+6U$"ZA"";6$346$."A1B".*L/"$*21<-4N$:27*3.2"-4$
/166"6$."A1+-36";$3-$."67"A4$1#$A*6@9+"-".*43-+$<-346$*."$*//1A*4";$41$.";<A"$4@"$A*..F3-+$
*21<-4$ 1#$ *66"46$ 3-$ 4@"$ <-34$ Q1.$ +.1<7$ 1#$ <-346T$ 1-$ *$ 7.1$ .*4*$ L*636U$ "ZA"74$ 4@*4$ 4@"$
A*..F3-+$B*/<"$1#$*-$*66"4$G3//$-14$L"$.";<A";$L"/1G$346$3-;3B3;<*/$#*3.$B*/<"$/"66$A1646$1#$
;36716*/$Q3#$2"*6<.*L/"T$1.$B*/<"$3-$<6"$Q3#$;"4".23-*L/"TN$

$
9$ !"B".6*/6$1#$327*3.2"-4$/166"6$
$

&-$ 327*3.2"-4$ /166$ 36$ ."B".6";$ 3#$ 4@"."$ @*6$ L""-$ *$ #*B1<.*L/"$ A@*-+"$ 3-$ 4@"$ "6432*4"6$
<6";$41$;"4".23-"$4@"$."A1B".*L/"$*21<-4N$ $ &$."B".6*/$1#$*-$327*3.2"-4$/166$36$/3234";$
41$4@"$*66"4j6$A*..F3-+$*21<-4$4@*4$G1</;$@*B"$L""-$;"4".23-";$@*;$-1$327*3.2"-4$/166$
L""-$."A1+-36";$3-$7.31.$F"*.6N$ $ !"B".6*/6$1#$327*3.2"-4$/166"6$*."$A.";34";$41$7.1#34$1.$
/166$3-$4@"$F"*.$3-$G@3A@$4@"$."B".6*/6$*."$."A1+-36";N$

$
6:8! S%+,%*3#$,-!

$
:-B"-41.3"6$*."$A*..3";$*4$4@"$/1G".$1#$A164$*-;$-"4$."*/36*L/"$B*/<"N$
$
0164$36$A*/A</*4";$<63-+$4@"$#3.6493-U$#3.6491<4$L*636$*-;$A127.36"6$*//$A1646$1#$7<.A@*6"U$A1646$1#$
A1-B".631-$ *-;$ 14@".$ A1646$ 3-A<..";$ 3-$ L.3-+3-+$ 4@"$ 3-B"-41.3"6$ 41$ 4@"3.$ 7."6"-4$ /1A*431-$ *-;$
A1-;3431-N$
$
I"4$ ."*/36*L/"$ B*/<"$ 36$ 4@"$ "6432*4";$ 6"//3-+$ 7.3A"$ 3-$ 4@"$ 1.;3-*.F$ A1<.6"$ 1#$ L<63-"66$ /"66$ 4@"$
"6432*4";$A1646$1#$A127/"431-$*-;$4@"$"6432*4";$A1646$-"A"66*.F$41$2*Y"$4@"$6*/"N$
$

$
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! Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
!
NQ! B$:;*E3AE/-,!(--,*-!

$ $ $
$ $ ^bW$
$ $ $
23-*^! $ $
! $ $
&4$=J$M<-"$'J8H$ $ 9$
:27*A4$1-$3-343*/$*77/3A*431-$1#$^bc!?$8C$Q6""$-14"$'QATT$ $ =(=UdD=$
$ $ $
&4$8$M</F$'J8H$*-;$=J$M<-"$'J'J$ $ =(=UdD=$
$ $ $
?&&/4/)(*,7!7,'#,&$(*$3%^! $ $
! $ $
&4$=J$M<-"$'J8H$*-;$8$M</F$'J8H$ $ 9$
0@*.+"$#1.$4@"$F"*.$ $ 8>=U=(H$
$ $ $
&4$=J$M<-"$'J'J$ $ 8>=U=(H$
$ $ $
2(##>$%:!+()/,^! $ $
! $ $
&4$=J$M<-"$'J'J$ $ '=JUJ(d$
$ $ $
&4$8$M</F$'J8H$ $ =(=UdD=$

!
K@"$0/<L$@*6$1L4*3-";$4@"$.3+@4$41$<6"$*$/*-;$/14$/"*6";$#.12$4@"$,1B".-2"-4$1#$4@"$^1-+$b1-+$
?7"A3*/$ &;23-364.*43B"$ !"+31-$ #1.$ 4@"$ 17".*431-$ 1#$ *$ A/<L@1<6"$ 4@.1<+@$ *$ /"*6"$ *+.""2"-4N$ $
K@"$/"*6"$.<-6$#1.$*$7".31;$1#$8>$F"*.6$*-;$A1-4*3-6$B*.3*L/"$/"*6"$7*F2"-4$4".26$4@*4$*."$L*6";$
1-$.*4"*L/"$B*/<"$1#$4@"$/*-;$/14$#.12$432"$41$432"N$ $ $
$
&4$=J$M<-"$'J'JU$34$36$"6432*4";$4@*4$*-$3-A."*6"$3-$.*4"*L/"$B*/<"$1#$4@"$/*-;$/14$LF$>g$G1</;$
@*B"$3-A."*6";$4@"$/"*6"$7*F2"-46$LF$>gN$

!
NN! S%+,%*3#$,-!

$ 'J'J$ 'J8H$
$ ^bW$ ^bW$
$ $ $
0/<L$6@17$641AY$ C>U'==$ 8'JUCHD$
O*.$641AY$ >8=U>Hd$ 'DHUD'D$
!"64*<.*-4$641AY$ ! ! >=(U>HJ$ d8dU=dD$
$ $ $
$ 8U88DUd8D$ (8dUDD8$

!
!
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
F)+#4'+)'+:#';0&*&70*-'4+*+#1#&+4'

! Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
!
N! 2)/5!$%A3#4(*$3%!

$
&L".;""-$O1*4$0/<L$P3234";$Q4@"$R0/<LST$36$3-A1.71.*4";$*-;$;123A3/";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$*-;$@*6$
346$ ."+364".";$1##3A"$ *-;$7.3-A37*/$ 7/*A"$1#$ L<63-"66$ *4$ 'J$?@<2$a*-$!1*;U$&L".;""-U$^1-+$
b1-+N$
$
K@"$ 0/<L$ 36$ /3234";$ LF$ +<*.*-4""$ G34@$ -1$ 6@*."$ A*734*/N$ $ :-$ *AA1.;*-A"$ G34@$ A<.."-4$ ^1-+$
b1-+$4*Z$/"+36/*431-U$ 4@"$0/<L$36$-14$6<LX"A4$ 41$7.1#346$ 4*Z$1-$*-F$17".*43-+$6<.7/<6"6$3#$21."$
4@*-$>Jg$1#$4@"$+.166$."A"3746$*."$;".3B";$#.12$B143-+$2"2L".6$1#$4@"$0/<LN$

!
U! C$:%$A$&(%*!(&&3/%*$%:!'3)$&$,-!
!
6(8! C*(*,4,%*!3A!&34')$(%&,!

$
K@"6"$ #3-*-A3*/$ 64*4"2"-46$@*B"$L""-$7."7*.";$ 3-$ *AA1.;*-A"$G34@$ *//$ *77/3A*L/"$^1-+$b1-+$
c3-*-A3*/$ !"71.43-+$ ?4*-;*.;6$ QR^bc!?6STU$ G@3A@$ A1//"A43B"$ 4".2$ 3-A/<;"6$ *//$ *77/3A*L/"$
3-;3B3;<*/$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ c3-*-A3*/$ !"71.43-+$ ?4*-;*.;6U$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ &AA1<-43-+$ ?4*-;*.;6$
QR^b&?6ST$ *-;$ :-4".7."4*431-6$ 366<";$ LF$ 4@"$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ :-6434<4"$ 1#$ 0".43#3";$ )<L/3A$
&AA1<-4*-46$ QR^b:0)&STU$ *AA1<-43-+$ 7.3-A37/"6$ +"-".*//F$ *AA"74";$ 3-$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ *-;$ 4@"$
."E<3."2"-46$ 1#$ 4@"$ ^1-+$ b1-+$ 0127*-3"6$ \.;3-*-A"N$ $ &$ 6<22*.F$ 1#$ 4@"$ 63+-3#3A*-4$
*AA1<-43-+$71/3A3"6$*;174";$LF$4@"$0/<L$36$6"4$1<4$L"/1GN$
$
K@"$^b:0)&$@*6$366<";$A".4*3-$-"G$*-;$."B36";$^bc!?6$4@*4$*."$#3.64$"##"A43B"$1.$*B*3/*L/"$
#1.$ "*./F$ *;17431-$ #1.$ 4@"$ A<.."-4$ *AA1<-43-+$ 7".31;$ 1#$ 4@"$ 0/<LN$ $ I14"$ 'QAT$ 7.1B3;"6$
3-#1.2*431-$ 1-$ *-F$ A@*-+"6$ 3-$ *AA1<-43-+$ 71/3A3"6$ ."6</43-+$ #.12$ 3-343*/$ *77/3A*431-$ 1#$ 4@"6"$
;"B"/172"-46$ 41$ 4@"$ "Z4"-4$ 4@*4$ 4@"F$ *."$ ."/"B*-4$ 41$ 4@"$0/<L$ #1.$ 4@"$F"*.6$ ."#/"A4";$ 3-$ 4@"6"$
#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46N$ $ $
$
K@"$0/<L$ @*6$ -14$ *77/3";$ *-F$ -"G$ 64*-;*.;$ 1.$ 3-4".7."4*431-$ 4@*4$ 36$ -14$ F"4$ "##"A43B"$ #1.$ 4@"$
A<.."-4$*AA1<-43-+$7".31;$Q6""$-14"$'8TN$
$

658! .(-$-!3A!'#,'(#(*$3%!3A!*;,!A$%(%&$()!-*(*,4,%*-!
$
K@"$2"*6<."2"-4$L*636$<6";$3-$4@"$7."7*.*431-$1#$4@"$#3-*-A3*/$64*4"2"-46$36$4@"$@3641.3A*/$A164$
L*636N$
$
K@"$7."7*.*431-$1#$ #3-*-A3*/$ 64*4"2"-46$ 3-$ A1-#1.234F$G34@$^bc!?6$ ."E<3."6$2*-*+"2"-4$ 41$
2*Y"$X<;+"2"-46U$"6432*4"6$*-;$*66<27431-6$4@*4$*##"A4$4@"$*77/3A*431-$1#$71/3A3"6$*-;$."71.4";$
*21<-46$1#$*66"46U$/3*L3/343"6U$3-A12"$*-;$"Z7"-6"6N$ $ K@"$"6432*4"6$*-;$*661A3*4";$*66<27431-6$
*."$L*6";$1-$@3641.3A*/$"Z7".3"-A"$*-;$B*.31<6$14@".$#*A41.6$4@*4$*."$L"/3"B";$41$L"$."*61-*L/"$
<-;".$ 4@"$A3.A<264*-A"6U$ 4@"$."6</46$1#$G@3A@$#1.2$4@"$L*636$1#$2*Y3-+$ 4@"$ X<;+"2"-46$*L1<4$
A*..F3-+$ B*/<"6$ 1#$ *66"46$ *-;$ /3*L3/343"6$ 4@*4$ *."$ -14$ ."*;3/F$ *77*."-4$ #.12$ 14@".$ 61<.A"6N$ $
&A4<*/$."6</46$2*F$;3##".$#.12$4@"6"$"6432*4"6N$
$
K@"$ "6432*4"6$ *-;$ <-;"./F3-+$ *66<27431-6$ *."$ ."B3"G";$ 1-$ *-$ 1-+13-+$ L*636N$ $ !"B3631-6$ 41$
*AA1<-43-+$"6432*4"6$*."$."A1+-36";$3-$4@"$7".31;$3-$G@3A@$4@"$"6432*4"$36$."B36";$3#$4@"$."B3631-$
*##"A46$1-/F$4@*4$7".31;U$1.$3-$4@"$7".31;$1#$4@"$."B3631-$*-;$#<4<."$7".31;6$3#$4@"$."B3631-$*##"A46$
L14@$A<.."-4$*-;$#<4<."$7".31;6N$
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$
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$
a@"-$3-B"-41.3"6$*."$61/;U$4@"$A*..F3-+$*21<-4$1#$4@16"$3-B"-41.3"6$36$."A1+-36";$*6$*-$"Z7"-6"$
3-$ 4@"$7".31;$ 3-$G@3A@$ 4@"$ ."/*4";$ ."B"-<"$ 36$ ."A1+-36";N$ $ K@"$*21<-4$1#$*-F$G.34"9;1G-$1#$
3-B"-41.3"6$41$-"4$."*/36*L/"$B*/<"$*-;$*//$/166"6$1#$3-B"-41.3"6$*."$."A1+-36";$*6$*-$"Z7"-6"$3-$
4@"$7".31;$ 4@"$G.34"9;1G-$1.$ /166$1AA<.6N$ $ K@"$*21<-4$1#$*-F$."B".6*/$1#$*-F$G.34"9;1G-$1#$
3-B"-41.3"6$36$."A1+-36";$*6$*$.";<A431-$3-$4@"$*21<-4$1#$3-B"-41.3"6$."A1+-36";$*6$*-$"Z7"-6"$
3-$4@"$7".31;$3-$G@3A@$4@"$."B".6*/$1AA<.6N$
$
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$
&$A1-4.*A4$*66"4$ 36$ ."A1+-36";$G@"-$4@"$0/<L$."A1+-36"6$."B"-<"$Q6""$-14"$'Q-TT$L"#1."$L"3-+$
<-A1-;3431-*//F$ "-434/";$ 41$ 4@"$ A1-63;".*431-$<-;".$ 4@"$7*F2"-4$ 4".26$ 6"4$ 1<4$ 3-$ 4@"$ A1-4.*A4N$ $
01-4.*A4$*66"46$*."$*66"66";$#1.$[0P6$3-$*AA1.;*-A"$G34@$4@"$*AA1<-43-+$71/3AF$6"4$1<4$3-$-14"$
'Q#TQ3T$ *-;$ *."$ ."A/*663#3";$ 41$ ."A"3B*L/"6$ G@"-$ 4@"$ .3+@4$ 41$ 4@"$ A1-63;".*431-$ @*6$ L"A12"$
<-A1-;3431-*/N$
$
&$ A1-4.*A4$ /3*L3/34F$ 36$ ."A1+-36";$ G@"-$ 4@"$ A<6412".$ 7*F6$ A1-63;".*431-$ L"#1."$ 4@"$ 0/<L$
."A1+-36"6$ 4@"$ ."/*4";$ ."B"-<"$ Q6""$ -14"$ 'Q-TTN$ $ &$ A1-4.*A4$ /3*L3/34F$ 36$ */61$ ."A1+-36";$ 3#$ 4@"$
0/<L$@*6$*-$<-A1-;3431-*/$.3+@4$41$."A"3B"$A1-63;".*431-$L"#1."$4@"$0/<L$."A1+-36"6$4@"$."/*4";$
."B"-<"N$ $ :-$6<A@$A*6"6U$*$A1.."671-;3-+$."A"3B*L/"$36$*/61$."A1+-36";N$
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c1.$*$63-+/"$A1-4.*A4$G34@$4@"$A<6412".U$"34@".$*$-"4$A1-4.*A4$*66"4$1.$*$-"4$A1-4.*A4$/3*L3/34F$36$
7."6"-4";N$ $ c1.$2</437/"$A1-4.*A46U$A1-4.*A4$*66"46$*-;$A1-4.*A4$/3*L3/343"6$1#$<-."/*4";$A1-4.*A46$
*."$-14$7."6"-4";$1-$*$-"4$L*636N$
$
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$
&$."A"3B*L/"$36$."A1+-36";$G@"-$4@"$0/<L$@*6$*-$<-A1-;3431-*/$.3+@4$41$."A"3B"$A1-63;".*431-N$ $
&$.3+@4$41$."A"3B"$A1-63;".*431-$36$<-A1-;3431-*/$3#$1-/F$4@"$7*66*+"$1#$432"$36$."E<3.";$L"#1."$
7*F2"-4$1#$4@*4$A1-63;".*431-$36$;<"N$ $ :#$."B"-<"$@*6$L""-$."A1+-36";$L"#1."$4@"$0/<L$@*6$*-$
<-A1-;3431-*/$ .3+@4$ 41$ ."A"3B"$ A1-63;".*431-U$ 4@"$ *21<-4$ 36$ 7."6"-4";$ *6$ *$ A1-4.*A4$ *66"4$ Q6""$
-14"$'Q@TTN$ $ $
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ABERDEEN BOAT CLUB LIMITED
香港仔遊艇會有限公司

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

$

! !#,"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
F)+#4'+)'+:#';0&*&70*-'4+*+#1#&+4'67)&+0&.#%8'

! Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
$

U! C$:%$A$&(%*!(&&3/%*$%:!'3)$&$,-!6&3%*$%/,78!
$

6%8! B,+,%/,!(%7!3*;,#!$%&34,!6&3%*$%/,78!
$
c<.4@".$ ;"4*3/6$ 1#$ 4@"$ 0/<L56$ ."B"-<"$ *-;$ 14@".$ 3-A12"$ ."A1+-3431-$ 71/3A3"6$ *."$ *6$ #1//1G6%$
QA1-43-<";T$
$
Q33T$ [-4.*-A"$#""6$*-;$3-A12"$#.12$6*/"$1#$-123-""$2"2L".6@37$*."$."A1+-36";$3-$7.1#34$1.$

/166$*4$*$713-4$3-$432"$G@"-$4@"$A*-;3;*4"$36$*;2344";$*6$*$2"2L".$1#$4@"$0/<LN$
$
Q333T$ c11;$*-;$L*.$."B"-<"6$*."$."A1+-36";$3-$7.1#34$1.$/166$*4$*$713-4$3-$432"$G@"-$#11;$*-;$

L"B".*+"6$*-;$4@"$."/*4";$6".B3A"6$*."$7.1B3;";$41$A<6412".6N$
$
Q3BT$ V11.3-+$."-4*/$3-A12"U$A/<L$L1*4$3-A12"$*-;$A*.$7*.Y$/*L"/$3-A12"$*."$."A1+-36";$1B".$

432"U$3N"N$1B".$4@"$/"*6"$7".31;N$
$
QBT$ W3-+@F$A1<.6"$3-A12"$36$."A1+-36";$1B".$432"U$3N"N$1B".$4@"$7".31;$1#$4.*3-3-+$A1<.6"6N$ $
$
QB3T$ :-A12"$#.12$4.*-6#".$1#$-123-""$2"2L".6@37$36$."A1+-36";$*4$*$713-4$3-$432"$G@"-$4@"$

."/*4";$6".B3A"6$*."$."-;".";N$
$
QB33T$ ,1B".-2"-4$+.*-46$*."$."A1+-36";$*4$4@"3.$#*3.$B*/<"$G@"-$4@"."$36$."*61-*L/"$*66<.*-A"$

4@*4$ 4@"$ +.*-46$ G3//$ L"$ ."A"3B";$ *-;$ 4@*4$ 4@"$ 0/<L$ G3//$ A127/F$ G34@$ *//$ *44*A@";$
A1-;3431-6N$ $ ,.*-46$ 4@*4$ A127"-6*4"$ 4@"$ 0/<L$ #1.$ "Z7"-6"6$ 3-A<..";$ *."$ ."A1+-36";$ *6$
3-A12"$3-$7.1#34$*-;$/166$1-$*$6F64"2*43A$L*636$3-$4@"$6*2"$7".31;$3-$G@3A@$4@"$"Z7"-6"6$
*."$3-A<..";N$

$
QB333T$ :-4"."64$3-A12"$36$."A1+-36";$*6$34$*AA.<"6$<63-+$4@"$"##"A43B"$3-4"."64$2"4@1;N$
$

638! F#(%-)(*$3%!3A!A3#,$:%!&/##,%&$,-!
$
c1."3+-$A<.."-AF$4.*-6*A431-6$;<.3-+$4@"$F"*.$*."$4.*-6/*4";$*4$4@"$#1."3+-$"ZA@*-+"$.*4"6$.</3-+$
*4$4@"$4.*-6*A431-$;*4"6N$ $ V1-"4*.F$*66"46$*-;$/3*L3/343"6$;"-123-*4";$3-$#1."3+-$A<.."-A3"6$*."$
4.*-6/*4";$ *4$ 4@"$ #1."3+-$ "ZA@*-+"$ .*4"6$ .</3-+$ *4$ 4@"$ "-;$1#$ 4@"$ ."71.43-+$7".31;N$ $ [ZA@*-+"$
+*3-6$*-;$/166"6$*."$."A1+-36";$3-$7.1#34$1.$/166N$
$
I1-921-"4*.F$ *66"46$ *-;$ /3*L3/343"6$ 4@*4$ *."$2"*6<.";$ 3-$ 4".26$ 1#$ @3641.3A*/$ A164$ 3-$ *$ #1."3+-$
A<.."-AF$*."$4.*-6/*4";$<63-+$4@"$#1."3+-$"ZA@*-+"$.*4"6$.</3-+$*4$4@"$4.*-6*A431-$;*4"6N$
$
$

!

! !#*"

!"#$%##&'()*+',-."'/010+#%'
!"#$%&'()*'
F)+#4'+)'+:#';0&*&70*-'4+*+#1#&+4'67)&+0&.#%8'

! Q[Z7."66";$3-$^1-+$b1-+$;1//*.6T$
$

N[! 2(-;!A)30!$%A3#4(*$3%! !
$
!"A1-A3/3*431-$1#$/3*L3/343"6$*.363-+$#.12$#3-*-A3-+$*A43B343"6%$
$
$ $ $ $$ P"*6"$

/3*L3/343"6$
$

$ $ $ $$ ^bW$$
$ $ $ $$ $$
&4$=J$M<-"$'J8H$ $ $ $$ 9$$
:27*A4$1-$3-343*/$*77/3A*431-$1#$^bc!?$8C$Q6""$-14"$'QATT$ $ $ $$ =(=UdD=$$
$ $ $ $$ $$
&4$8$M</F$'J8H$ $ $ $$ =(=UdD=$$
$ $ $ $$ $$
0*6@$#/1G6%$ $ $ $$ $$
9$0*734*/$"/"2"-4$1#$/"*6"$."-4*/6$7*3;$ $$ $$ Q8HJU=HJ$T$
9$:-4"."64$"/"2"-4$1#$/"*6"$."-4*/6$7*3;$ $$ $$ Q$ !8dUJCJ$T$
$ $ $ $$ $$
$ $$ $$ Q'JdUd>J$T$
$ $ $ $$ $$
\4@".$A@*-+"6%$ $ $ $$ $$
9$:-4"."64$1-$/"*6"$/3*L3/343"6$ $ $ $$ $ 8dUJCJ$$
$ $ $ $$ $$
&4$=J$M<-"$'J'J$ $ $ $$ 8H=UJ(=$$
$ $ $ $$ $$

N\! H$%(%&$()!#$-R!4(%(:,4,%*!(%7!A($#!+()/,-!
$
[Z716<."$41$A.";34U$/3E<3;34FU$3-4"."64$.*4"$*-;$#1."3+-$A<.."-AF$.36Y6$*.36"6$3-$4@"$-1.2*/$A1<.6"$
1#$ 4@"$ 0/<L56$ 17".*431-6N$ $ K@"6"$ .36Y6$ *."$ /3234";$ LF$ 4@"$ 0/<L56$ #3-*-A3*/$ .36Y$2*-*+"2"-4$
71/3A3"6$*-;$7.*A43A"6$;"6A.3L";$L"/1GN$ $

$
Q*T$ 0.";34$.36Y$

$
0.";34$ .36Y$ ."#".6$ 41$ 4@"$ .36Y$ 4@*4$ *$ A1<-4".7*.4F$ G3//$ ;"#*</4$ 1-$ 346$ A1-4.*A4<*/$ 1L/3+*431-6$
."6</43-+$ 3-$ *$ #3-*-A3*/$ /166$ 41$ 4@"$ 0/<LN$ $ K@"$ 0/<L56$ A.";34$ .36Y$ 36$ 7.32*.3/F$ *44.3L<4*L/"$ 41$
*AA1<-46$ ."A"3B*L/"$ #.12$2"2L".6N$ $ K@"$0/<L56$ "Z716<."6$ 41$ A.";34$ .36Y6$ *.363-+$ #.12$ #3Z";$
L*-Y$;"716346$*-;$A*6@$*-;$A*6@$"E<3B*/"-46$*."$/3234";$L"A*<6"$4@"$A1<-4".7*.43"6$*."$#3-*-A3*/$
3-6434<431-6$4@*4$@*B"$61<-;$A.";34$.*43-+6N$
$
&4$=J$ M<-"$'J'JU$ 4@"$0/<L$@*;$*$ A".4*3-$ A1-A"-4.*431-$1#$ A.";34$ .36Y$ *6$D=g$ Q'J8H%$DDgT$1#$
A*6@$*-;$L*-Y$L*/*-A"6$G*6$@"/;$LF$*$#3-*-A3*/$3-6434<431-N$ !
$
:-$."67"A4$1#$*AA1<-46$."A"3B*L/"$#.12$2"2L".6U$3-;3B3;<*/$A.";34$"B*/<*431-6$*."$7".#1.2";$1-$
*//$2"2L".6$ ."E<3.3-+$ A.";34$ 1B".$ *$ A".4*3-$ *21<-4N$ $ &AA1<-46$ ."A"3B*L/"$ *."$ ;<"$G34@3-$ =J$
;*F6$#.12$4@"$;*4"$1#$L3//3-+N$ $ W"L41.6$G34@$L*/*-A"6$4@*4$*."$21."$4@*-$'$21-4@6$7*64$;<"$*."$
."E<"64";$41$6"44/"$*//$1<464*-;3-+$L*/*-A"6$L"#1."$*-F$#<.4@".$A.";34$36$+.*-4";N$ $ I1.2*//FU$4@"$
0/<L$;1"6$-14$1L4*3-$A1//*4".*/$#.12$2"2L".6N$
$



39

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies 

 The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first 
effective for the current accounting period of the Club.  Of these, the following developments are 
relevant to the Club’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 

 HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.  It sets out 
the requirements for recognising and measuring financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for measuring impairment of financial assets, and general hedge accounting requirements.

 Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out 
below:

 (i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

  HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured 
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through other comprehensive income and (3) fair value 
through profit or loss.  The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is determined 
based on the business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics.

 The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are 
largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a 
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes 
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income 
(without reclassification to profit or loss).  

 The Club has assessed that its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost under HKAS 39 on 30 June 2018 continue with their respective classifications and 
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

 (ii) Credit losses

  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” 
model.  The “expected credit loss” model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk 
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises expected credit losses earlier than 
under the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39.  Further details on the Club’s accounting 
policy for accounting for credit losses are set out in note 2(e).  The adoption of “expected 
credit loss” model under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in the recognition of any additional 
credit losses at 1 July 2018.
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